
 
 

Special Meeting of the Franklin Economic Development Commission (EDC) 
Agenda 

Franklin City Hall, Hearing Room 
9229 W. Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 

March 12, 2026 – 6:00 p.m. 
 

Chairman Steve Bobowski  
Cathleen Richard 
Mike Barber 

Barbara Wesener 
Timothy Wachter 
Alderwoman Michelle Eichmann 

I. Call to Order and Roll Call 
A. Pledge of Allegiance 

II. Citizen Comment Period 

III. Approve Minutes from the January 26, 2026 Meeting 

IV. Lee Mechanical, Major Site Plan Amendment.  Request to approve a Major Site Plan 
Amendment for the addition of 51 parking stalls to the current 74 parking stalls 
located upon property at 9909 S 57th Street. 

V. Economic Development Update 
A. Strategic Plan Implementation 

1. Industrial and Commercial Nodes Prioritization 
2. Strategic Plan Report and Implementation Plan Presentation to Council for 

adoption  

B. Current Prospects 
The Economic Development Commission may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 
19.85(1)(e), for market competition reasons, to deliberate and consider potential 
commercial/industrial/manufacturing development(s) and governmental actions in relation 
thereto, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters 
discussed therein as it deems appropriate. 

VI. Examine Meeting Dates 

VII. Adjournment 
 

Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an Agenda item 
over which they have decision making responsibility. This may constitute a meeting of the Council per State ex rel. Badke v. 
Greendale Village Board, even though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting. 

 
Notice is given that upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through 
appropriate aids and services. For additional information, please contact the Franklin City Clerk’s office at (414) 425-7500. 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 



 
 

Minutes of the Franklin Economic Development Commission 
Franklin City Hearing Room 

9229 W. Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin  
January 26, 2025 – 6:00 p.m. 

Members Present Others Present 
Mike Barber X Bobowski, Steve (Chair)   
Barbara Wesener X Timothy Wachter (Vice Chair)   John Regetz, Economic Development Director 
Cathleen Richard X Michelle Eichmann (Alderwoman) X

 
 

     
 

I. The Franklin Economic Development Commission (EDC) meeting was called to order at 6:32 p.m. by 
Alderwoman Eichmann. 

II. The floor was opened for Citizen Comment at 6:33 p.m.   No citizens were present, and Citizen Comment 
closed at 6:34 p.m. 

III. Approve Minutes from the October 27, 2025 Meeting – Motion by Barber, second by Wesener, to approve.  
Motion Carried.  

IV. Set meeting dates and times – Regetz displayed the 9/25/25 minutes indicating the 4th Thursday of the month 
was set for meetings, but the last two have been scheduled for the 4th Monday, so discussion needs to be 
held.  Motion by Barber, second by Richard, to hold EDC meetings on the 4th Monday of each month, except 
November, December and July in 2026.  Motion Carried. 

V. Economic Development Update 
A. Economic Development Update Distribution – Regetz described how the report was placed on a city 

webpage and a link was put on post cards sent to residents, saving at least $1,750 over mailing the full 
8-page document in the newsletter.  The report can also be used as a marketing piece for prospecting. 

B. Strategic Plan Implementation 
1. Immediate Goals in the timeline – Communications goals are meeting deadlines.  Retail 

and industrial nodes prioritization is next due.  Regetz will send the Analysis of Specific 
Sites section of the Ticknor report for the EDC to initiate the search for currently 
undeveloped sites.  Open suggestions will be considered as well. 

2. Presentation to Council for adoption – The full Commission needs to take the Economic 
Development Strategic Report and Implementation Plan to the Common Council for 
adoption.  Scheduling is to be done with confirmation of the EDC. 

C. Current Prospect – Motion by Richard, second by Wesener, to enter closed session.  Motion Carried at 
7:23 pm. 

The Economic Development Commission may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(e), for 
market competition reasons, to deliberate and consider potential commercial/industrial/manufacturing 
development(s) and governmental actions in relation thereto, and to reenter open session at the same place 
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate. 
Motion by Barber, second by Wesener, to enter back to open session.  Motion Carried at 8:08 pm.  

VI. Next meeting date - February 23. 

VII. Adjournment - Motion by Richard, second by Wesener, to adjourn.  Meeting adjourned. 



 
 
 

 
BLANK PAGE 



 
 

1 

 CITY OF FRANKLIN  
 

REPORT TO THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
 

Meeting of March 12, 2026 
 

Site Plan Amendment 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of the Site Plan with conditions 
of the proposed Site Plan Amendment for additional parking. 

Project Name:  Lee Mechanical Parking 
Project Address/Tax Key: 9909 S 57th Street / 899 0003 000 
Property Owner: Five Balls, LLC 
Applicant: Brandon Quinn, Lee Mechanical 
Agent: Mark Eberle, Nielsen, Madsen & Barber 
Aldermanic District: District 4 
Zoning District: PDL 7 – Franklin Industrial Park 
Staff Planner: Luke Hamill, Associate Planner 
 

Project Description/Analysis  
Please note: 

• Recommendations are underlined, in italics and are included in the draft resolution. 
• Suggestions are only underlined and are not included in the draft resolution. 

 
The applicant, Brandon Quinn of Lee Mechanical, submitted an application for a Major Site Plan 
Amendment approval for the addition of 51 parking stalls to the current 74 parking stalls on site.  
 
Parking 
The proposed parking meets the standards in the Establishing Ordinance for PDL 7 that all parking 
shall be no less than 180 square feet and complied with the Unified Development Ordinance’s Width 
and Depth Standards. The additional parking required additional Landscaping area as well, which the 
applicant has provided as part of this proposed Minor Site Plan Amendment. The applicant has also 
marked which spots are meant for employee parking and which spots are meant for visitor parking, as 
PDL 7 has requirements that employee parking shall not be in the front yard area. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
City Development Staff recommends to approve the Site Plan with conditions. 
 
 

Item D.6  



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN 

RESOLUTION NO. 2026-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING SITE PLAN AMENDMENT FOR  
LEE MECHANICAL INC. 

(9909 S. 57TH STREET) 
(LEE MECHANICAL INC., APPLICANT, FIVE BALLS LLC, PROPERTY OWNER) 

              
 

 WHEREAS, Lee Mechanical Inc., applicant, Five Balls LLC, Owner, having 
petitioned the City of Franklin for approval of a site plan amendment for an addition of 51 
parking spaces, for Lee Mechanical Inc., in the City of Franklin Industrial Park, property 
located at 9909 S. 57th Street, Franklin Industrial Park, Block 1, Lot 3; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Economic Development Commission having reviewed the proposed 
site plan amendment and found same to be in compliance with and in furtherance of the 
standards of Planned Development District No. 7. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Economic Development 
Commission of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the site plan amendment City file-
stamped February 18th, 2026, attached hereto and incorporate herein, be and the same is 
approved, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The property subject to the Site Plan shall be developed in substantial compliance 
with and operated and maintained to the Site Plan for Lee Mechanical Inc., plans 
dated February 18, 2026. 

2. Lee Mechanical Inc., successors and assigns, and any developer of the dental office 
project, shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, 
inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults 
to the City of Franklin, for the dental office project, within 30 days of invoice for 
same. Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development 
Ordinance, and subject to §15-9-14 and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general 
penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time. 

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the Franklin Pediatric Dentistry, 
LLC project (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, 
rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental 
approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to 
be developed and as presented for this approval. 

4. That the Franklin Pediatric Dentistry project shall be developed and constructed 
pursuant to such Site Plan within two years from the date of this approval, or this 
approval and all rights and approvals granted hereunder shall be null and void, 
without any further action by the City of Franklin. 



5. The applicant is responsible for obtaining separate approvals from other city 
departments or agencies, including but not limited to: stormwater management, 
utilities, erosion control, land disturbance permits (Engineering Department); building 
permits, trades permits (HVAC, plumbing, electrical) and certificate of occupancy 
(Inspection Services Department). 

 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Economic Development Commission of 
the City of Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2026. 

 
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Economic Development Commission 

of the City of Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2026. 
 

APPROVED: 
 
       _________________________________  
       Steve Bobowski, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________       
Timothy Wachter, Vice Chairman 
 

AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



1 

     
 

 

City of Franklin 
Department of City Development 

 

 

 

Date: September 10, 2025 
To: Brandon Quinn, Lee Mechanical 
From: Department of City Development. Luke Hamill, Associate Planner. 
RE: Staff Comments, 9909 S 57th Street / 899 0003 000 
 
 
Please be advised that city staff has reviewed the above application received on August 18, 
2025, for a proposed site plan amendment for the addition of 51 parking spaces located 
at 9909 S 57th Street / 899 0003 000. The following comments are for your review and 
consideration. 

Planning Department 

Site Plan 

Off-Street Parking 

1. According to Section 12.10(13)(b) Off-Street Parking and Loading of Ordinance No. 1985-
0864, establishing Planned Development District No. 7, parking spaces must be a minimum 
of 180 square feet. Please adjust the new parking to meet the square footage. 

2. According to Section 12.10(13)(b) Off-Street Parking and Loading of Ordinance No. 1985-
0864, establishing Planned Development District No. 7, “Employee or truck parking shall 
not be allowed in the front yard building setback area. Please revise the site plan to show 
what is employee/truck parking, and what is customer parking. 

3. According to Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Table 15-05-01(C), Parking spaces 
are required to be at least 10 feet in width. Please revise the site plan to change the parking 
space widths from 9 feet to 10 feet. 

4. UDO §15-5-01C.4, Setback Required, Nonresidential off-street parking must be set back 
at least 10 feet from lot lines. Please revise the site plan to reflect this change. The existing 
parking on the north side of the lot is legal non-conforming. Any new additional parking 
must meet the standards of the current UDO. 
 

Landscaping 

1. Per Section 12.10(12) Landscaping and Landscaping Maintenance of Ordinance No. 1985-
0864, All Off-street parking areas which serve 5 vehicles or more shall be provided with 
accessory landscape areas totaling not less than 5 percent of the surfaced area. The 
minimum size of each landscape area shall not be less than 100 square feet. The addition 
of 51 parking spaces requires an additional 459 square feet of landscaping area. Please 
revise the submittal to include a landscape plan with location, plantings, species, for the 



2 

     
 

 

City of Franklin 
Department of City Development 

 

 

 

Economic Development Commission to review, as well as include the square footage of 
landscaping area. 

 

Engineering Department Comments 

All manhole structures in the City of Franklin use Pro-Rings, it is suggested that the new storm 
sewer use these for adjusting 

A soil disturbance permit will be required 

Engineering will do a separate review of the construction plans when submitted 

 



Lot 3, Block 1, in FRANKLIN INDUSTRIAL PARK, being a Redivision of CERTIFIED SURVEY 
MAP NO. 3226 and a Subdivision of lands in part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 
1/4, the Northwest 1/4 and part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 26, 
Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of 
Wisconsin. 

 
 

https://docs.clarityfirst.com/meta/index?m=5413c06b-ecb3-41e0-a7cc-6544242c7a2a&q=kty2SO9JmvdimAiR1SP9DDD8SDyewQxOjhjC3EtHsJI%3d&h=2df20348-20b0-41e2-8d8e-7791b60daf97
https://docs.clarityfirst.com/meta/index?m=5413c06b-ecb3-41e0-a7cc-6544242c7a2a&q=kty2SO9JmvdimAiR1SP9DNfkTVHMhoEUioDXd2DRaCo%3d&h=25e8b5f7-d522-4d61-bba8-632c15ac8eed
https://docs.clarityfirst.com/meta/index?m=5413c06b-ecb3-41e0-a7cc-6544242c7a2a&q=kty2SO9JmvdimAiR1SP9DNfkTVHMhoEUioDXd2DRaCo%3d&h=25e8b5f7-d522-4d61-bba8-632c15ac8eed


1458 Horizon Blvd, Suite 200, Racine, WI 53406 
Ph: (262) 634-5588 * Fax: (262) 634-5024 

www.nmbsc.net 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
August 8, 2025 
 
 
 
 
RE:  Lee Mechanical, Inc.  

Parking Lot Maintenance / Expansion 
 Project Narrative 
 Tax Key No: 8990003000 
 
 
Lee Mechanical Inc. is a commercial, industrial, and electrical contractor headquartered in 
the Franklin Business Park off of West Ryan Road. While the existing building is adequate 
for Lee’s operational needs, the number of on-site parking stalls falls well below the 
quantity needed for their current staff. In addition, the existing pavements are in poor 
condition, requiring improvement to accommodate the regular flow of company vehicles 
and auto traffic. 
 
To address these needs, they are proposing to replace the majority of the on-site 
pavements and add additional pavements to accommodate the needed staff parking. 
While doing so, minor drainage improvements will also be made. 
 
The northerly parking lot serves as the main drive aisle for their heavier company 
vehicles and therefore will be re-paved with heavy-duty asphalt. The remainder of the 
site will be repaved medium-duty asphalt as needed for auto parking. A concrete 
sidewalk and staff patio expansion is also proposed on the south side of the building. 
 
There are 74 parking spaces (including 4 accessible parking spaces) currently located 
throughout the site. The proposed project will add fifty-one (51) regular parking spaces 
and one (1) ADA space for a total of 125 parking stalls.  
 
Site lighting and landscaping are not proposed to be modified as part of this effort. 
 



Response to Stormwater Review #1 
OCFSD Natatorium Page 2 
 
 
 

 
 

1458 Horizon Blvd., Suite 200, Racine, WI 53406 
Ph: (262) 634-5588 * Fax: (262) 634-5024 

www.nmbsc.net 
 

The project is scheduled to be completed fall of 2025. 
 
 
 



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

C-1
SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

MDE
JGO

10-3-2025
MDE

10-3-2025

2024.0278.01

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

GAS METER

FOUND IRON PIPE

SET IRON PIPE

UNDERGROUND VAULT

SECTION CORNER

STREET SIGN

MAIL BOX

HVAC UNIT

GUARD POST

SOIL BORING

PAD MOUNT TRANSFORMER

ELECTRIC METER

ELECTRIC PEDESTAL

LIGHT POLE

WATER MAIN REDUCER

SANITARY MANHOLE

COMMUNICATION MANHOLE

ELECTRIC MANHOLE

NO VEHICULAR ACCESS

SEPTIC VENT

FENCE

OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

RAILROAD TRACKS

UNDERGROUND GAS MAIN

UNDERGROUND COMMUNICATIONS

SILT FENCE

UTILITY POLE

GAS VALVE

GUY WIRE

TELEPHONE BOX

CULVERT 

ENDWALL

CATCH BASIN

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

CONTOURS

CONIFEROUS TREE

CONIFEROUS TREE REMOVAL

BUSH

STORM MANHOLE

SANITARY CLEAN OUT

HYDRANT

WATER MAIN VALVE

DECIDUOUS TREE REMOVAL

DECIDUOUS TREE

EDGE OF WOODS WATER SHUT OFF

WATER MANHOLE

SANITARY SEWER

STORM SEWER

WATERMAIN

LEGEND
Existing Existing Proposed

FORCE MAIN

FIRE PROTECTION

UTILITY CROSSING

DITCH OR SWALE

BASE LINE BL
LONG CORD OF CURVE CHD
CURB AND GUTTER C&G
CATCH BASIN CB
CENTERLINE CL
EDGE OF PAVEMENT EOP
FINISHED FIRST FLOOR FFF
FINISHED GRADE FG
FLOW LINE FL
FLOODPLAIN FP
ORDINARY HIGH WATER MARK OHWM
TOP OF BANK TOB
TOP OF CURB TOC
TOP OF WALK TOW

ABBREVIATIONS
INVERT ELEVATION IE
LENGTH OF CURVE ARC
MANHOLE MH
NORMAL WATER LEVEL NWL
POINT OF CURVATURE PC
POINT OF TANGENCY PT
TANGENCY OF CURVE TAN
POINT OF VERTICAL INTERSECTION PVI
RADIUS R
RIGHT OF WAY ROW
SANITARY SEWER SAN
STORM SEWER STM
TOP OF FOUNDATION TOF
WATER MAIN WM

Description Description

DRY WELL

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY AND
ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY
CONNECTIONS AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL
CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY NOTE

Plan Sheet Sheet No.
TITLE SHEET

EXISTING CONDITIONS

DIMENSIONED SITE PLAN

SITE DEMOLITION PLAN

PAVEMENT GRADING & STRIPING PLAN

SITE GRADING & EROSION CONTROL PLAN

TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

LANDSCAPE PLAN

C-1

C-2

C-3

C-4

C-5

C-6

C-7 to C-8

L-1.0 to L-2.0

LEE MECHANICAL INC.
C/O: BRANDON QUINN
9909 S 57TH ST
FRANKLIN, WI 53132
PHONE: (262) 412-3709
EMAIL: bquinn@selectlee.com

OWNER

SHEET INDEX

MILWAUKEE

CONSTRUCTION PLANS
for

LEE MECHANICAL INC.
 PARKING LOT EXPANSION

GRADING, DRAINAGE, AND PAVEMENT IMPROVEMENTS
9909 S. 57TH Street, Franklin, Wisconsin

GOVERNING AGENCIES CONTACTS

PUBLIC UTILITY CONTACTS
SPECTRUM

STEVE CRAMER
UTILITY COORDINATOR
OFFICE: (414) 277-4045
EMAIL: steve.cramer@charter.com
EMERGENCY NUMBER: (800) 627-2288

AT&T
BRENT LEWIS
-MANAGER OSP PLANNING & 
ENGINEERING DESIGN
OFFICE: (414) 429-4214
EMAIL: bl521d@att.com

TDS TELECOM
SOUTHEAST WISCONSIN
OFFICE: 877-483-7142

WE-ENERGIES
TOM SCHULTZ
OFFICE: 262-552-3229

 EMAIL: tom.schultz@we-energies.com

NATURAL GAS EMERGENCY: (800) 261-5325
ELECTRICAL EMERGENCY: (800) 662-4797

AMERICAN TRANSMISSION COMPANY
BRIAN MCGEE
OFFICE: 262-506-6895
EMAIL: bmcgee@atcllc.com
EMERGENCY NUMBER: (800) 972-5341

CITY OF FRANKLIN - ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD
FRANKLIN, WI 53132
OFFICE:  414-425-7510
FAX:  414-425-3106

CITY OF FRANKLIN
MIKE PAULOS, P.E., CITY ENGINEER
OFFICE:  414-425-7510
EMAIL: mpaulos@franklinwi.gov

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
PETER WOOD, P.E., WATER RESOURCE ENGINEER
OFFICE:  262-884-2360
EMAIL:  peterwood@wisconsin.gov

CITY OF FRANKLIN - PLANNING DEPARTMENT
9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD
FRANKLIN, WI 53132
OFFICE:  414-425-4024
FAX:  414-427-7691

CITY OF FRANKLIN - PLANNING DEPARTMENT
RÉGULO MARTINEZ-MONTILVA, PRINCIPAL PLANNER
OFFICE:  414-425-4024
EMAIL:  RMartinez-Montilva@franklinwi.gov

CITY OF FRANKLIN - PLANNING DEPARTMENT
MARION ECKS, PRINCIPAL PLANNER
OFFICE:  414-425-4024
EMAIL:  MEcks@franklinwi.gov

PROJECT LOCATION

LE
E 

M
EC

HA
N

IC
AL

 IN
C.

PA
RK

IN
G

 L
O

T 
EX

PA
N

SI
O

N
G

RA
DI

N
G

, D
RA

IN
AG

E,
 A

N
D 

PA
VE

M
EN

T
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
TS

CI
TY

 O
F 

FR
AN

KL
IN

, C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
M

IL
W

AU
KE

E,
 W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 A

P
P
R
O
V
A
L
: 
1
0
-3

-2
0
2
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:59:04 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Friday, October 03, 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
X      X

AutoCAD SHX Text
//

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
CM

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
>

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text
\

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CMP

joconnor
Placed Image



S.
 5

7t
h 

ST
RE

ET

S.
 6

0t
h 

ST
RE

ET

EXISTING BUILDING

EXISTING BUILDING

FIRST FLOOR ELEV. = 715.75

FIRST FLOOR ELEV. = 715.75

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

60'

SCALE 1"=30'

30' 0' 30' 60'

MDE
JGO

10-3-2025
MDE

10-3-2025

2024.0278.01

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

NOTES
BEARING BASE: GRID NORTH, WISCONSIN
COORDINATE SYSTEM, SOUTH ZONE.
BASED UPON NAD 1983 / 2011.

ALL ELEVATIONS REFER TO NAVD 1988 (12).

C-2

LE
E 

M
EC

HA
N

IC
AL

 IN
C.

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 L

O
T 

EX
PA

N
SI

O
N

EX
IS

TI
N

G 
CO

N
DI

TI
O

N
S

CI
TY

 O
F 

FR
AN

KL
IN

, C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
M

IL
W

AU
KE

E,
 W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 A

P
P
R
O
V
A
L
: 
1
0
-3

-2
0
2
5

CB 1
RIM 704.48
IE. 15" E/W 700.48

CB 2
RIM 714.37
IE. 6" NE 712.77
IE. 6" SW 712.77
(HALF FULL OF WATER)

CB 3
RIM 714.59
IE. 30" N/S 710.39
IE. 12" NW 712.09
IE. 12" E 710.69

CB 4
RIM 715.00
IE. 12" W 710.95

CB 5
RIM 716.34
IE. 30" N/S 711.99
CHUTE E 712.54

CB 6
RIM 717.03
CHUTE W 713.53

CB 7
RIM 713.22
IE. 6" NW 710.57

CB 8
RIM 706.48
IE. 18" W 702.23
IE. 15" NE 702.93

STM 1
RIM 710.16
IE. 15" SW 705.76
IE. 10" NE 707.61

SAN 2
RIM 707.05
IE. 8" S 696.45
IE. 8" W 696.90
IE. 8" E 696.90

SAN 3
RIM 709.61
IE. 8" E/W 701.61

EXISTING UTILITY DATA

GUARD RAIL

HAND RAIL

LEGEND

1-1/4" IRON PIPE FOUND

2" IRON PIPE FOUND "PK" NAIL FOUND

LIGHT POLE

SIGN

CATCH BASIN

STORM SEWER

SANITARY MANHOLE

WATER MAIN

HYDRANT

WATER VALVE

ELECTRIC LINE

ELECTRIC PEDESTAL

COMMUNICATION BOX

COMMUNICATION LINE

GAS MAIN

GAS VALVE

GAS METER

DECIDUOUS TREE

CONIFEROUS TREE

FENCE

GUARD POST

YARD LIGHT

FLAG POLE

BUSH

MAILBOXFLOOR DRAIN

FIRE DEPT. CONNECTOR

SANITARY SEWER

CLEAN OUTELECTRIC METER PAD MOUNT TRANSFORMERGUARD POST

DOWNSPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK #1  HYDRANT TOP NUT  ELEV. 708.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK #2  HYDRANT TOP NUT  ELEV. 716.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD IP 1.10'S 0.11'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD IP 0.81'S 0.23'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD IP 0.78'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD PK 0.20'N 0.36'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD IP 0.20'N 0.38'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK #1  HYD. TOP LRG CPLG  ELEV. 708.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
9:34:42 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wednesday, October 01, 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CM

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN



S.
 5

7t
h 

ST
RE

ET

S.
 6

0t
h 

ST
RE

ET

EXISTING BUILDING

EXISTING BUILDING

FIRST FLOOR ELEV. = 715.75

FIRST FLOOR ELEV. = 715.75

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

60'

SCALE 1"=30'

30' 0' 30' 60'

MDE
JGO

10-3-2025
MDE

10-3-2025

2024.0278.01

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

PROPOSED
5' WIDE CONCRETE

WALK

PROPOSED
5' WIDE

CONCRETE WALK

CB 7
RIM 713.22 (EX)

RIM 714.16 (PROP)
IE. 6" (NW) 710.57
IE. 6" (SE) 710.67

DB 1.0
RIM 713.37

IE. 6" (NW) 710.72

EX CB 2
RIM 714.37 (EX)

RIM 714.77 (PROP)
IE. 6" (NE) 712.77
IE. 6" (SW) 712.77

20 LF - 6" STM
@ 0.26%

DOWEL TO
EXISTING CURB

DOWEL TO
EXISTING CURB PROPOSED

CURB

PROPOSED
CURB

C-3

47

59

PARKING COUNT
EXISTING PARKING:    34 CUSTOMER STALLS

     36 EMPLOYEE STALLS
     4 HANDICAP STALLS

PROPOSED PARKING: 47 EMPLOYEE STALLS
     1 HANDICAP STALL

TOTAL:                 34 CUSTOMER STALLS
     82 EMPLOYEE STALLS

                5 HANDICAP STALLS
                121 TOTAL STALLS

PROPOSED
5" CONCRETE

PATIO EXTENSION

PROPOSED
ADA STALL

3
C-7

3
C-7

LE
E 

M
EC

HA
N

IC
AL

 IN
C.

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 L

O
T 

EX
PA

N
SI

O
N

DI
M

EN
SI

O
N

ED
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

CI
TY

 O
F 

FR
AN

KL
IN

, C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
M

IL
W

AU
KE

E,
 W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 A

P
P
R
O
V
A
L
: 
1
0
-3

-2
0
2
5

5
C-8

GENERAL NOTES

1

1

STORM SEWER SPECIFICATIONS
MATERIAL FOR STORM SEWERS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE OF WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF SAFETY AND
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND CITY OF FRANKLIN SPECIFICATIONS.

STORM SEWER CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE "STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR
SEWER & WATER CONSTRUCTION IN WISCONSIN", 6TH EDITION, DECEMBER 22, 2003 WITH ADDENDA NO. 1 AND NO. 2,
HEREIN REFERRED TO AS THE "STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS".

STORM SEWER AND STORM BUILDING SEWER PIPE AND TUBING MATERIALS SHALL CONFORM TO SPS 384.30 OF THE
WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE.  REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE (RCP) AND POLYVINYL CHLORIDE (PVC) MATERIALS
SHALL BE SELECTED FROM TABLE 84.30-6. CORRUGATED HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE (HDPE) PIPE MATERIAL (IF
SELECTED) SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF AASHTO M-252  FOR 4"-10" DIAMETER SIZES AND AASHTO M294 FOR 12"-48"
DIAMETER SIZES.

BEDDING AND COVER MATERIAL SHALL BE SAND, CRUSHED STONE CHIPS OR CRUSHED STONE SCREENINGS CONFORMING
TO CHAPTER 8.43.2 OF THE "STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS".

ALL STORM SEWERS INSTALLED IN EXISTING OR PROPOSED PAVED AREAS SHALL BE BACKFILLED WITH COMPACTED
GRANULAR MATERIAL IN ACCORDANCE WITH TABLE 37, CHAPTER 8.43.4 OF THE "STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS".  BACKFILL
MATERIAL SHALL EXTEND A MINIMUM OF FIVE FEET (5') OUTSIDE OF THE PAVEMENT LIMITS.  TRENCHES RUNNING
PARALLEL TO AND LESS THAN FIVE FEET (5') FROM THE EDGE OF PAVEMENT SHALL ALSO REQUIRE COMPACTED
GRANULAR BACKFILL.

A BROWN 12 GUAGE LOCATOR WIRE SHALL BE INSTALLED THE ENTIRE LENGTH OF ALL PRIVATE STORM SEWERS, ROOF
DRAINS AND STORM BUILDING SEWER LATERALS PER SPS 382.36(7)(d)10. THE TRACER WIRE SHALL BE EXTENDED TO THE
SURFACE WITHIN THE STRUCTURES AND ROOF DRAIN RISERS.

STORM SEWER DRAIN BASINS (DB) SHALL BE 12" DIAMETER NYOPLAST STRUCTURES AS PRODUCED BY ADS OR APPROVED
EQUAL UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED ON THE PLANS.

STORM SEWERS, CATCH BASINS, MANHOLES, AND INLETS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH WATER AND GAS TIGHT JOINTS IN
CONFORMANCE WITH SPS 384.40.

AT THE COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF ALL ABANDONED, EXCESS,
WASTE, STOCKPILED AND SPOIL MATERIAL IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 205.3.12 OF THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS". THIS
WORK SHALL BE DONE AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

PARKING LEGEND

28EXISTING CUSTOMER
PARKING

EXISTING EMPLOYEE
PARKING

PROPOSED EMPLOYEE
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK #1  HYDRANT TOP NUT  ELEV. 708.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD IP 1.10'S 0.11'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD IP 0.81'S 0.23'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD IP 0.78'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD PK 0.20'N 0.36'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD IP 0.20'N 0.38'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK #1  HYD. TOP LRG CPLG  ELEV. 708.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELBOW INTO GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
9:34:47 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wednesday, October 01, 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT-1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT-1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE CASTING & ADJUSTMENT RINGS. RECONSTRUCT CHIMNEY WITH NEW ADJUSTMENT RINGS AND SET CASTING TO NEW PROPOSED GRADE.



S.
 5

7t
h 

ST
RE

ET

S.
 6

0t
h 

ST
RE

ET

EXISTING BUILDING

EXISTING BUILDING

FIRST FLOOR ELEV. = 715.75

FIRST FLOOR ELEV. = 715.75

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

60'

SCALE 1"=30'

30' 0' 30' 60'

MDE
JGO

10-3-2025
MDE

10-3-2025

2024.0278.01

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

DEMOLITION LEGEND

X

XX

REMOVE POST

X X X X X X

X

REMOVE &
RELOCATE
SIGN

C-4

X
X
X
X

X

LE
E 

M
EC

HA
N

IC
AL

 IN
C.

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 L

O
T 

EX
PA

N
SI

O
N

SI
TE

 D
EM

O
LI

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

CI
TY

 O
F 

FR
AN

KL
IN

, C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
M

IL
W

AU
KE

E,
 W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 A

P
P
R
O
V
A
L
: 
1
0
-3

-2
0
2
5

DEMOLITION NOTES
THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DEMOLITION, REMOVAL, AND DISPOSAL AT A LOCATION APPROVED (BY ALL
GOVERNING AUTHORITIES) OF ALL STRUCTURES, PADS, WALLS, FLUMES, FOUNDATIONS, PAVEMENTS, DRIVES, DRAINAGE
STRUCTURES, UTILITIES, ETC., SUCH THAT THE IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN ON THE REMAINING PLANS CAN BE
CONSTRUCTED. ALL FACILITIES TO BE REMOVED SHALL BE UNDERCUT TO SUITABLE MATERIAL AND BROUGHT TO GRADE
WITH SUITABLY COMPACTED FILL MATERIAL PER THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS."

THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR REMOVING ALL DEBRIS FROM THE SITE AND DISPOSING THE DEBRIS IN A
LAWFUL MANNER. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL PERMITS REQUIRED FOR DEMOLITION, SITE
CLEARING, AND DISPOSAL.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH RESPECTIVE UTILITY COMPANIES PRIOR TO THE REMOVAL AND/OR
RELOCATION OF UTILITIES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH THE UTILITY COMPANY CONCERNING PORTIONS
OF WORK WHICH MAY BE PERFORMED BY THE UTILITY COMPANY'S FORCES AND ANY FEES WHICH ARE TO BE PAID TO
THE UTILITY COMPANY FOR THEIR SERVICES. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYING ALL FEES AND CHARGES.

THE LOCATIONS OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS PLAN HAVE BEEN DETERMINED FROM THE BEST
INFORMATION AVAILABLE AND ARE GIVEN FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF THE CONTRACTOR. THE LAND SURVEYOR AND
ENGINEER OF RECORD ASSUME NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THEIR ACCURACY. PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY DEMOLITION
ACTIVITY, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE UTILITY COMPANIES FOR ON-SITE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITIES.

ALL EXISTING SEWERS, PIPING, AND UTILITIES SHOWN ARE NOT TO BE INTERPRETED AS THE EXACT LOCATION OR AS
THE ONLY OBSTACLES THAT MAY OCCUR ON THE SITE. VERIFY EXISTING CONDITIONS AND PROCEED WITH CAUTION
AROUND ANY ANTICIPATED FEATURES. GIVE NOTICE TO ALL UTILITY COMPANIES REGARDING DESTRUCTION AND
REMOVAL OF ALL SERVICE LINES AND CAP ALL LINES BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH THE WORK.

IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE AT 1-800-242-8511 A MINIMUM OF 3
WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO EXCAVATION ACTIVITIES TO LOCATE AND MARK ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO HIRE A PRIVATE UTILITY LOCATING SERVICE TO LOCATE AND
MARK ALL UNDERGROUND PRIVATE UTILITIES.

CONTRACTOR MUST PROTECT THE PUBLIC AT ALL TIMES WITH SIGNS, FENCING, BARRICADES, ENCLOSURES, ETC., (AND
OTHER APPROPRIATE BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES) AS APPROVED BY THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER. TEMPORARY
CLOSURE OF ANY PUBLIC ROADWAY SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION.

CONTINUOUS ACCESS SHALL BE MAINTAINED FOR THE SURROUNDING PROPERTIES AT ALL TIMES DURING THE COURSE
OF WORK.

PRIOR TO DEMOLITION OCCURRING, ALL EROSION CONTROL DEVICES ARE TO BE INSTALLED.

EXISTING ITEMS TO REMAIN INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, FENCES, SIGNS, UTILITIES, BUILDINGS, TREES, PAVEMENTS,
AND LIGHT POLES SHALL BE CAREFULLY PROTECTED DURING THE DEMOLITION PROCESS.   ANY DAMAGE SUSTAINED TO
ITEMS TO REMAIN IN PLACE SHALL BE REPAIRED OR REPLACED AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE AT NO ADDITIONAL
COST TO THE OWNER.

PROPERTY CORNERS AND BENCHMARKS SHALL BE CAREFULLY PROTECTED UNTIL THEY HAVE BEEN REFERENCED BY A
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR. PROPERTY MONUMENTS DISTURBED BY THE CONTRACTOR'S OPERATIONS SHALL BE
REPLACED AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

CONTRACTOR SHALL LIMIT PAVEMENT REMOVALS TO ONLY THOSE AREAS AS SHOWN ON THESE CONSTRUCTION PLANS
OR AS NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE WORK.  CONCRETE SIDEWALK AND CURB & GUTTER IS TO BE REMOVED TO
NEAREST JOINT IN ORDER TO ACCOMMODATE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS.  IF ANY DAMAGE IS INCURRED ON ANY OF
THE SURROUNDING PAVEMENTS AND OR OTHER IMPROVEMENTS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
REMOVAL AND REPAIR OF DAMAGED PAVEMENT AND OTHER ITEMS AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

IF PREVIOUSLY UNIDENTIFIED HAZARDOUS, CONTAMINATED MATERIALS, OR OTHER ENVIRONMENTAL RELATED
CONDITIONS ARE DISCOVERED, STOP WORK IMMEDIATELY AND NOTIFY THE PROJECT CONSTRUCTION MANAGER FOR
ACTION TO BE TAKEN. DO NOT RESUME WORK UNTIL SPECIFICALLY AUTHORIZED BY THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER.

AT THE COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF ALL ABANDONED, EXCESS,
WASTE, STOCKPILED AND SPOIL MATERIAL IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 205.3.12 OF THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS".
THIS WORK SHALL BE DONE AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK #1  HYDRANT TOP NUT  ELEV. 708.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD IP 1.10'S 0.11'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD IP 0.81'S 0.23'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD IP 0.78'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD PK 0.20'N 0.36'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD IP 0.20'N 0.38'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK #1  HYD. TOP LRG CPLG  ELEV. 708.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
9:34:53 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wednesday, October 01, 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAW CUT PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH) STRIP ALL TOPSOIL AND OTHER SUCH ORGANIC MATERIAL REGARDLESS OF DEPTH. CERTIFY THAT THE UNDERLYING SUB-SOILS ARE STRUCTURALLY SOUND. IMPORT STRUCTURAL MATERIAL AS NEEDED AND COMPACT TO ACHIEVE REQUIRED SUBGRADE.  REMOVE ASPHALT PAVEMENT. PROOF ROLL UNDERLYING AGGREGATE AND REMOVE AND REPLACE AS NECESSARY TO ACHIEVE A STRUCTURALLY SOUND PAVEMENT BASE COURSE.  CLEAR & GRUB TREES/LANDSCAPING



S.
 5

7t
h 

ST
RE

ET

S.
 6

0t
h 

ST
RE

ET

EXISTING BUILDING

EXISTING BUILDING

FIRST FLOOR ELEV. = 715.75

FIRST FLOOR ELEV. = 715.75

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

60'

SCALE 1"=30'

30' 0' 30' 60'

MDE
JGO

10-3-2025
MDE

10-3-2025

2024.0278.01

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

PAVEMENT GRADING LEGEND

PAVEMENT MARKING LEGEND

C-5

2
C-8

3
C-7

5
C-7

6
C-8

4
C-7

LE
E 

M
EC

HA
N

IC
AL

 IN
C.

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 L

O
T 

EX
PA

N
SI

O
N

PA
VE

M
EN

T 
GR

AD
IN

G 
&

ST
RI

PI
N

G 
PL

AN
CI

TY
 O

F 
FR

AN
KL

IN
, C

O
U

N
TY

 O
F 

M
IL

W
AU

KE
E,

 W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 A

P
P
R
O
V
A
L
: 
1
0
-3

-2
0
2
5

REFERENCES
STATE OF WISCONSIN STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY AND STRUCTURE
CONSTRUCTION,  2025 EDITION, HEREIN REFERRED TO AS "STATE SPECIFICATIONS."  THE
CURRENT VERSION OF THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS" IS AVAILABLE ON THE WisDOT WEBSITE AT
http://roadwaystandards.dot.wi.gov/standards/stndspec/index.htm

"MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES" (MUTCD), 11TH EDITION (DATED DECEMBER 2023).

GENERAL NOTES
CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT DIGGER'S HOTLINE A MINIMUM OF 3 DAYS BEFORE THE
START OF CONSTRUCTION TO IDENTIFY ANY UNDERGROUND UTILITIES PRESENT AT THE
SITE.  THE LOCATION OF EXISTING PRIVATE UTILITIES MAY NOT BE SHOWN ON THE
PLANS AND SHOULD BE LOCATED BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

AT THE COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE AND DISPOSE
OF ALL ABANDONED, EXCESS, WASTE, STOCKPILED AND SPOIL MATERIAL IN
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 205.3.12 OF THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS". THIS WORK
SHALL BE DONE AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

PAVEMENT SPECIFICATIONS
DENSE AGGREGATE BASE COURSE SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 305
OF THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS". THE COMPLETED BASE SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE "TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS" SHEET(S) OF THE PLAN SET
AND SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN FOUR-INCH (4") LIFTS AND COMPACTED ACCORDING TO
SUBSECTION 305.3.2.2 OF THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS". DENSE AGGREGATE BASE
COURSE SHALL EXTEND A MINIMUM OF TWELVE-INCHES (12") BEYOND THE EDGE OF
PAVEMENT OR BACK OF CURB.

ASPHALTIC CONCRETE PAVEMENT SHALL BE WISDOT LT 58-28 S MEETING THE
REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 460 OF THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS".  PAVEMENT SHALL BE
INSTALLED IN TWO (2) LIFTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE "TYPICAL SECTIONS &
CONSTRUCTION DETAILS" SHEET(S) OF THE PLAN SET.  A TACK COAT SHALL BE
INSTALLED BETWEEN THE LOWER AND UPPER COURSES IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION
455.3.2 OF THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS".

CONCRETE FOR PATIOS, SIDEWALKS AND CURB & GUTTER SHALL BE GRADE A-FA,
AIR-ENTRAINED, AS SPECIFIED IN SUBSECTION 501.3.1 OF THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS".
ALL EXTERIOR CONCRETE SHALL BE "READY-MIXED" AND RECEIVE A BROOM FINISH.  ALL
CONCRETE WORK SHALL BE CURED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF
SUBSECTION 415.2.4 OF THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS".

ALL CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER SHALL BE 18" VERTICAL FACE CURB CONFORMING TO
THE "TYPICAL SECTIONS & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS" SHEET(S) OF THE PLAN SET AND
SECTION 601 OF THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS". CURB & GUTTER SHALL BE "REVERSE
PAN CURB" OR "STANDARD CURB" AS INDICATED BY THE LEGEND BELOW AND INSTALLED
IN A MANNER TO SHED STORM WATER RUNOFF TOWARDS THE DRAINAGE STRUCTURES.

18" VERTICAL FACE (REVERSE PAN) CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL BE AT TEN-FOOT (10') INTERVALS FOR CURB AND GUTTER
AND MATCH THE WIDTH FOR CONCRETE SIDEWALKS.

EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE PLACED AS OUTLINED IN SUBSECTION 601.3.6 OF THE
"STATE SPECIFICATIONS".  FILLER MATERIAL FOR EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE 1/2"
FIBER MATERIAL.

CONTRACTOR SHALL ADJUST AND/OR RECONSTRUCT ALL UTILITY COVERS (SUCH AS
MANHOLES, VALVE BOXES, ETC.) TO MATCH THE FINISHED GRADES OF THE AREA
AFFECTED BY THE CONSTRUCTION.

PAVEMENT MARKING NOTES
CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY PAVEMENT MARKING COLOR WITH OWNER PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION.

PROVIDE CONTRACTOR GRADE ACRYLIC PAINT FOR NEW ASPHALT OR COATED
ASPHALT.  ALL MARKING SHALL BE APPLIED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S
SPECIFICATIONS.

THOROUGHLY CLEAN SURFACES FREE OF DIRT, SAND, GRAVEL, OIL AND OTHER
FOREIGN MATTER.  CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLE FOR INSPECTING PAVEMENT SURFACE
FOR CONDITIONS AND DEFECTS THAT WILL ADVERSELY AFFECT QUALITY OF WORK.

DO NOT PLACE MARKING OVER UNSOUND PAVEMENTS.  IF THESE AREAS EXIST, NOTIFY
OWNER.  STARTING INSTALLATION CONSTITUTES CONTRACTOR'S ACCEPTANCE OF
SURFACE AS SUITABLE FOR INSTALLATION.

LAYOUT MARKINGS USING GUIDE LINES, TEMPLATES AND FORMS.  STENCILS AND
TEMPLATES SHALL BE PROFESSIONALLY MADE TO INDUSTRY STANDARDS.  "FREE HAND"
PAINTING OF ARROWS, SYMBOLS, OR WORDING SHALL NOT BE ALLOWED.  APPLY
STRIPES STRAIGHT AND EVEN.

PROTECT ADJACENT CURBS, WALKS, FENCES, AND OTHER ITEMS FROM OVERSPRAY
PAINT.

APPLY MARKING PAINT AS A RATE OF ONE (1) GALLON PER THREE TO FOUR HUNDRED
(300-400) LINEAL FEET OF FOUR (4) INCH WIDE STRIPES (OR TO MANUFACTURERS
SPECIFICATIONS).

BARRICADE MARKED AREAS DURING INSTALLATION AND UNTIL THE MARKING PAINT IS
DRIED AND READY FOR TRAFFIC.

ALL HANDICAPPED ACCESSIBLE PARKING SHALL BE LOCATED PER 2009 IBC 1106.6.

PROPOSED
ADA SIGN

7/8
C-8

PROPOSED
ADA SIGN

7/8
C-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK #1  HYDRANT TOP NUT  ELEV. 708.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK #1  HYD. TOP LRG CPLG  ELEV. 708.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
9:34:58 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wednesday, October 01, 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF CURB GRADE  FINISHED PAVEMENT GRADE FINISHED SIDEWALK GRADE FINISHED PAVEMENT GRADE EXISTING PAVEMENT GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYSL/4" - SINGLE YELLOW SOLID LINE / 4" WIDE EACH SYSL/4"/45°/4' - SINGLE YELLOW SOLID LINE / 4" WIDE EACH, 45°, 4' O.C.ISA-Y - INTERNATIONAL SYMBOL FOR ACCESSIBILITY - YELLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYSL/4" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
625.86 625.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
626.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
626.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
626.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" VERTICAL, REVERSE PAN CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER LIGHT-DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT (5") MEDIUM-DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT (4")  HEAVY-DUTY ASPHALT  PAVEMENT (6")

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYSL/4" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISA-Y 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYSL/4" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYSL/4" 



S.
 5

7t
h 

ST
RE

ET

S.
 6

0t
h 

ST
RE

ET

EXISTING BUILDING

EXISTING BUILDING

FIRST FLOOR ELEV. = 715.75

FIRST FLOOR ELEV. = 715.75

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

60'

SCALE 1"=30'

30' 0' 30' 60'

MDE
JGO

10-3-2025
MDE

10-3-2025

2024.0278.01

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

C-6

GRADING & EROSION CONTROL LEGEND

LE
E 

M
EC

HA
N

IC
AL

 IN
C.

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 L

O
T 

EX
PA

N
SI

O
N

SI
TE

 G
RA

DI
N

G 
&

ER
O

SI
O

N
 C

O
N

TR
O

L 
PL

AN
CI

TY
 O

F 
FR

AN
KL

IN
, C

O
U

N
TY

 O
F 

M
IL

W
AU

KE
E,

 W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 A

P
P
R
O
V
A
L
: 
1
0
-3

-2
0
2
5

2
C-7

1
C-7

EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL NOTES
THE EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PROVISIONS DETAILED ON THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFIED HEREIN ARE THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR
EROSION CONTROL.

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PREPARE ANY REVISIONS, ADJUSTMENTS OR PROPOSED ALTERATIONS TO THE EROSION
CONTROL PLAN.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO NOTIFY ENGINEER OF RECORD AND REGULATORY OFFICIALS OF ANY CHANGES TO THE
EROSION CONTROL AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLANS.  MODIFICATIONS TO THE APPROVED EROSION CONTROL DESIGN IN ORDER TO MEET
UNFORESEEN FIELD CONDITIONS IS ALLOWED IF MODIFICATIONS CONFORM TO BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMP'S).  ALL SIGNIFICANT
DEVIATIONS FROM THE PLANS MUST BE SUBMITTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY OF FRANKLIN.

THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND REMOVAL OF ALL EROSION CONTROL DEVICES REQUIRED
FOR THE PROJECT WHICH SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (DNR) TECHNICAL
STANDARDS (REFERRED TO AS BMP'S) AND CITY OF FRANKLIN ORDINANCES.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY ADDITIONAL
CONTROL MEASURES WHICH MAY BE NECESSARY TO MEET UNFORESEEN FIELD CONDITIONS.  SEE CITY OF FRANKLIN EROSION CONTROL PERMITS
FOR ADDITIONAL DETAILS OR REQUIREMENTS.

ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES AND DEVICES SHALL BE INSPECTED BY THE CONTRACTOR AS REQUIRED IN THE WISCONSIN
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE (SPS 360.21) AND MAINTAINED PER SPS 360.22.

INSPECTIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF ALL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE ROUTINE (ONCE PER WEEK MINIMUM) TO ENSURE PROPER
FUNCTION OF EROSION CONTROLS AT ALL TIMES.  SEDIMENT AND EROSION CONTROL MEASURES ARE TO BE IN WORKING ORDER AT THE END OF
EACH WORK DAY.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK THE EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES FOR MAINTENANCE NEEDS AT ALL THE
FOLLOWING INTERVALS UNTIL THE SITE IS STABILIZED:

A. AT LEAST WEEKLY.

B. WITHIN 24 HOURS AFTER A RAINFALL EVENT OF 0.5 INCHES OR GREATER.  A RAINFALL EVENT SHALL BE CONSIDERED TO BE THE TOTAL
AMOUNT OF RAINFALL RECORDED IN ANY CONTINUOUS 24-HOUR PERIOD.  ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL ITEMS SHALL BE
INSPECTED WITHIN 24 HOURS OF ALL RAIN EVENTS EXCEEDING 0.5 INCHES IMMEDIATELY REPAIR ANY DAMAGE OBSERVED DURING THE
INSPECTION.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN A MONITORING RECORD WHEN THE LAND DISTURBING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY INVOLVES ONE OR MORE
ACRES.  THE MONITORING RECORD SHALL CONTAIN AT LEAST THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

A. THE CONDITION OF THE EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES AT THE INTERVALS SPECIFIED ABOVE.

B. A DESCRIPTION OF THE MAINTENANCE CONDUCTED TO REPAIR OR REPLACE EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES.  EROSION
AND SEDIMENT CONTROL INSPECTIONS AND ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS MAY BE CONDUCTED BY WDNR, THE CITY OF FRANKLIN OR THEIR
AUTHORIZED AGENTS DURING AND AFTER THE CONSTRUCTION OF THIS PROJECT.

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL INSPECTIONS AND ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS MAY BE CONDUCTED BY WDNR, DSPS, CITY OF FRANKLIN OR
THEIR AUTHORIZED AGENTS DURING AND AFTER THE CONSTRUCTION OF THIS PROJECT.  ADDITIONAL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES, AS
REQUESTED BY STATE OR LOCAL INSPECTORS AND/OR THE ENGINEER OF RECORD, SHALL BE INSTALLED WITHIN 24 HOURS OF REQUEST.

ALL SEDIMENT AND EROSION CONTROL DEVICES SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO COMMENCING EARTH DISTURBING ACTIVITIES.  THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN ALL EROSION CONTROL DEVICES UNTIL THE SITE HAS ESTABLISHED A VEGETATIVE COVER AND IS STABILIZED.

INSTALL SILT FENCE PER SECTION 628 OF THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS" AND WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD 1056 AT THE LOCATIONS SHOWN ON
THE PLAN.  ERECT SILT FENCE PRIOR TO STARTING A CONSTRUCTION OPERATION THAT MIGHT CAUSE SEDIMENTATION OR SILTATION AT THE SITE
OF THE PROPOSED SILT FENCE.  CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL SILT FENCING AT DOWNSLOPE SIDE OF STOCKPILES.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL OF ALL REQUIRED SILT FENCE MATERIAL.

ALL PROPOSED STORM SEWER STRUCTURES AND ADJACENT EXISTING STORM INLETS SHALL HAVE A LAYER OF GEOTEXTILE FABRIC (TYPE "FF")
INSTALLED BETWEEN THE FRAME & GRATE TO PREVENT SEDIMENT OR SILT FROM ENTERING THE SYSTEM.  THE INLET PROTECTION SHALL BE
INSPECTED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND REPLACED EVERY 14 DAYS AND AFTER EACH RAINFALL EVENT.  FABRIC TO BE REPLACED AS NEEDED TO
MEET FIELD CONDITIONS.

THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTROLLING WIND EROSION (DUST) DURING CONSTRUCTION AT HIS/HER EXPENSE (WHEN NECESSARY
OR AS REQUIRED BY LOCAL INSPECTORS AND/OR ENGINEER OF RECORD).

EROSION CONTROL FOR UTILITY CONSTRUCTION (STORM SEWER, SANITARY SEWER, WATER MAIN, ETC.):

A. PLACE EXCAVATED TRENCH MATERIAL ON THE HIGH SIDE OF THE TRENCH.

B. BACKFILL, COMPACT AND STABILIZE THE TRENCH IMMEDIATELY AFTER PIPE CONSTRUCTION.

C. ANY WATER PUMPED FROM PITS, TRENCHES, WELLS OR PONDS SHALL BE DISCHARGED INTO A SEDIMENTATION BASIN OR FILTERING
TANK IN ACCORDANCE WITH WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD 1061 AND BMP'S PRIOR TO RELEASE INTO THE STORM SEWER, RECEIVING
STREAM OR DRAINAGE DITCH.  PUMPED WATER CAN BE TREATED IN FILTER BAGS, STONE FILTERS OR SIMILAR DEVICES.  QUALITY OF
PUMPED WATER SHALL BE CONTINUOUSLY MONITORED DURING PUMPING OPERATIONS.

EXCESS SOILS ARE TO BE HAULED OFF SITE OR ENCLOSED WITH AN APPROVED SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE WITHIN 24 HOURS.

PAVED SURFACES ADJACENT TO CONSTRUCTION SITE VEHICLE ACCESS SHALL BE SWEPT AND/OR SCRAPED TO REMOVE ACCUMULATED SOIL,
DIRT AND/OR DUST AT THE END OF EACH WORK DAY AND AS REQUESTED BY THE CITY OF FRANKLIN.

EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE REMOVED ONLY AFTER SITE CONSTRUCTION IS COMPLETE WITH ALL SOIL SURFACES HAVING AN
ESTABLISHED VEGETATIVE COVER.

SITE GRADING & SUB-GRADE PREPARATION
EXISTING TOPSOIL AND OTHER NON-STRUCTURAL MATERIAL WITHIN THE PROPOSED PAVEMENT SECTIONS AND
STRUCTURAL FILL AREAS SHALL BE STRIPPED (REGARDLESS OF DEPTH) AND HAULED OFF SITE.

EXCAVATE, GRADE, AND SHAPE SUBGRADES TO THE LINES AND GRADES SHOWN ON THE PLANS. SEE TYPICAL
SECTIONS AND CONSTRUCTION DETAILS FOR PAVEMENT THICKNESS AND MATERIALS.

FOR STRUCTURAL FILL DEPTHS LESS THAN 20 FEET, THE DENSITY OF THE STRUCTURAL COMPACTED FILL AND
SCARIFIED SUBGRADE AND GRADES SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN 95 PERCENT OF THE MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY AS
DETERMINED BY STANDARD PROCTOR (ASTM D-698) WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE TOP 12 INCHES OF PAVEMENT
SUBGRADE WHICH SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM IN-SITU DENSITY OF 100 PERCENT OF MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY, OR 5
PERCENT HIGHER THAN UNDERLYING FILL MATERIALS.

THE MOISTURE CONTENT OF COHESIVE SOIL SHALL NOT VARY BY MORE THAN -1 TO +3 PERCENT AND GRANULAR SOIL
±3 PERCENT OF THE OPTIMUM WHEN PLACED AND COMPACTED OR RECOMPACTED, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY
RECOMMENDED / APPROVED BY THE SOILS ENGINEER MONITORING THE PLACEMENT AND COMPACTION.  COHESIVE
SOILS WITH MODERATE TO HIGH EXPANSIVE POTENTIALS (PI>15) SHOULD, HOWEVER, BE PLACED, COMPACTED AND
MAINTAINED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AT A MOISTURE CONTENT OF 3±1 PERCENT ABOVE OPTIMUM MOISTURE
CONTENT TO LIMIT FUTURE HEAVE.

FILL MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED IN LAYERS WITH A MAXIMUM LOOSE THICKNESS OF 9 INCHES.  THE COMPACTION
EQUIPMENT SHOULD CONSIST OF SUITABLE MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT SPECIFICALLY DESIGNED FOR SOIL
COMPACTION.

UPON COMPLETION OF THE SUBGRADE, A PROOF ROLL SHALL BE CONDUCTED BY THE CONTRACTOR ON ALL
SUBGRADES TO RECEIVE DENSE AGGREGATE BASE COURSE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A FULLY LOADED
QUAD-AXLE TRUCK (18 TON MINIMUM LOAD) TO PERFORM THE PROOF ROLL.  CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE THE
PROOF ROLL WITH THE OWNER OR HIS REPRESENTATIVES TO ENSURE THEY ARE PRESENT.

AT THE COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF ALL ABANDONED, EXCESS,
WASTE, STOCKPILED AND SPOIL MATERIAL IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 205.3.12 OF THE "STATE SPECIFICATIONS".
THIS WORK SHALL BE DONE AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

RESTORATION NOTE
ALL DISTURBED LAWN AREAS SHALL BE RESTORED WITH 6" OF SALVAGED (OR IMPORTED) TOPSOIL, SEED (REINDERS
DELUX 50 MIX), FERTILIZER (WISDOT TYPE "B") AND EROSION MAT (CLASS I, TYPE B URBAN) IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
"STATE SPECIFICATIONS" UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED ON THE LANDSCAPE PLANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK #1  HYDRANT TOP NUT  ELEV. 708.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD IP 1.10'S 0.11'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD IP 0.81'S 0.23'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD IP 0.78'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD PK 0.20'N 0.36'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD IP 0.20'N 0.38'W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK #1  HYD. TOP LRG CPLG  ELEV. 708.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
9:35:02 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wednesday, October 01, 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE (0.296 ACRES) EXISTING CONTOURS PROPOSED CONTOURS INLET PROTECTION SILT FENCE



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

MDE
JGO

10-3-2025
MDE

10-3-2025

2024.0278.01

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

N.T.S.LIGHT-DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT (5")
(TYPICAL SECTION)3

SILT FENCE
DETAIL N.T.S.1

C-7

INLET PROTECTION
DETAIL N.T.S.2

LE
E 

M
EC

HA
N

IC
AL

 IN
C.

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 L

O
T 

EX
PA

N
SI

O
N

TY
PI

CA
L 

SE
CT

IO
N

S 
&

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

ET
AI

LS
CI

TY
 O

F 
FR

AN
KL

IN
, C

O
U

N
TY

 O
F 

M
IL

W
AU

KE
E,

 W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 A

P
P
R
O
V
A
L
: 
1
0
-3

-2
0
2
5

N.T.S.MEDIUM-DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT (4")
(TYPICAL SECTION)4 N.T.S.HEAVY-DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT (6")

(TYPICAL SECTION)5

AutoCAD SHX Text
9:35:07 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wednesday, October 01, 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE PER PLAN*

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED EARTH SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" COMPACTED DENSE AGGREGATE BASE  (1 1/4" GRADATION) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" CONCRETE GRADE A-FA 3,500 PSI (MIN.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
* SIDEWALKS: 1.5% CROSS-SLOPE (TYP.) 2.08% CROSS-SLOPE (MAX.)    PATIOS, PLAZAS, AND LANDINGS: 2.08% SLOPE IN ANY DIRECTION (MAX.)    ALL OTHER PAVEMENTS: SLOPE PER PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
*SILT FENCE SHALL BE FURNISHED, INSTALLED AND MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES TECHNICAL STANDARD 1056.

AutoCAD SHX Text
*INLET PROTECTION SHALL BE FURNISHED, INSTALLED AND MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES TECHNICAL STANDARD 1060.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED EARTH SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" COMPACTED DENSE AGGREGATE BASE  (1 1/4" GRADATION) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 1/4" LOWER COURSE   (3 LT 58-28 S) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/4" UPPER COURSE OVER TACK COAT (4 LT 58-28 S)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED EARTH SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" LOWER COURSE (3 LT 58-28 S) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" COMPACTED DENSE AGGREGATE BASE  (1 1/4" GRADATION)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" UPPER COURSE OVER TACK COAT  (3 LT 58-28 S)



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

MDE
JGO

10-3-2025
MDE

10-3-2025

2024.0278.01

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

18" VERTICAL FACE REVERSE PAN
CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER DETAIL N.T.S.2N.T.S.

CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER
DETAIL NOTES1 N.T.S.

CURB HEAD TAPER
DETAIL3

C-8

PAINTED INTERNATIONAL SYMBOL
FOR ACCESSIBILITY DETAIL N.T.S.6

VAN
ACCESSIBLE

RESERVED
PARKING

VEHICLES WITH
VEET OR DIS PLATED OR
STATE DISABLED CARD

THIS SPACE

ADA "RESERVED PARKING VAN ACCESSIBLE"
SIGN DETAIL N.T.S.7

SIGN

ALUMINUM ROUND SIGN POST
DETAIL N.T.S.8

NYLOPLAST DRAIN BASIN W/ FLAT GRATE
DETAIL N.T.S.5 LE

E 
M

EC
HA

N
IC

AL
 IN

C.
 P

AR
KI

N
G

 L
O

T 
EX

PA
N

SI
O

N
TY

PI
CA

L 
SE

CT
IO

N
S 

&
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 D
ET

AI
LS

CI
TY

 O
F 

FR
AN

KL
IN

, C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
M

IL
W

AU
KE

E,
 W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 A

P
P
R
O
V
A
L
: 
1
0
-3

-2
0
2
5

INTEGRAL CONCRETE SIDEWALK /
BARRIER CURB DETAIL N.T.S.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
9:35:11 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wednesday, October 01, 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4%. SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED DENSE AGGREGATE BASE (PER PLAN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED EARTH SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"/FT.  BATTER  CURB FACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" MAX. R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALLATION NOTES FOR CURB AND GUTTER DETAILS 1. CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER SHALL BE PLACED ON THOROUGHLY COMPACTED DENSE CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER SHALL BE PLACED ON THOROUGHLY COMPACTED DENSE AGGREGATE BASE COURSE EXTENDING A MINIMUM OF 12 INCHES BEHIND THE BACK OF CURB. 2. CURB PAN SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF SIX INCHES (6") THICK, EXPECT AT DRIVEWAY CURB PAN SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF SIX INCHES (6") THICK, EXPECT AT DRIVEWAY LOCATIONS WHERE IT SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF EIGHT INCHES (8") THICK. 3. INSTALL TWO (2) NO. 4, 18-INCH LONG EPOXY COATED TIE BARS ANCHORED WITH AN INSTALL TWO (2) NO. 4, 18-INCH LONG EPOXY COATED TIE BARS ANCHORED WITH AN EPOXY, EVENLY SPACED, DRIVEN NINE INCHES (9") INTO TO EXISTING OR PREVIOUSLY INSTALLED CURB AND GUTTER. 4. WHEN PLACED ADJACENT TO NEW CONCRETE, INSTALL NO. 4 18-INCH LONG EPOXY COATED WHEN PLACED ADJACENT TO NEW CONCRETE, INSTALL NO. 4 18-INCH LONG EPOXY COATED TIE BARS, 36" ON CENTER PLACED A MINIMUM OF THREE AND ONE HALF INCHES (3 ") 12") BELOW THE TOP OF THE CURB PAN. 5. LATERAL CONTRACTION JOINTS TO BE PLACED AT AN INTERVAL OF 10 FEET TO A MINIMUM LATERAL CONTRACTION JOINTS TO BE PLACED AT AN INTERVAL OF 10 FEET TO A MINIMUM DEPTH OF TWO INCHES (2"). 6. EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE PLACED TRANSVERSELY AT POINTS OF CURVATURE, ANGLE EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE PLACED TRANSVERSELY AT POINTS OF CURVATURE, ANGLE POINTS, THREE FEET (3') FROM EACH SIDE OF EVERY INLET AND EVERY 300 FEET ALONG TANGENT SECTIONS OR AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER.  EXPANSION JOINT FILLER MATERIAL SHALL MEET WISDOT SPECIFICATIONS HAVING THE SAME DIMENSIONS AS THE CURB & GUTTER WITH A 3/4" THICKNESS. 7. APPLY CONCRETE CURING COMPOUND PER WISDOT SPECIFICATIONS.APPLY CONCRETE CURING COMPOUND PER WISDOT SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB HEAD TRANSITION  (6" TO 0" HIGH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL PLAN LABEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT-1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB HEAD TAPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LABEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT-1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" (1.5')

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" (3.0')

AutoCAD SHX Text
72" (6.0')

AutoCAD SHX Text
120" (10')

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE PLAN FOR TAPER LABELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE CHART FOR TAPER LENGTHS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER (PER SPECIFICATIONS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT SECTION (PER SPECIFICATIONS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED EARTH SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED DENSE AGGREGATE BASE (PER PLAN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
YELLOW SYMBOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
R7-8WI  HIGH INTENSITY PRISMATIC (HIP)  5052-ALUMINUM     WIDTH X     HEIGHT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
R7-8A  HIGH INTENSITY PRISMATIC (HIP)  12" WIDTH X 6" HEIGHT 5052-ALUMINUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
72"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" SIGN SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN POST (PER PLAN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN PLATES (PER TRAFFIC SIGNAGE AND MARKING PLAN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 3/8" DIAMETER ROUND ALUMINUM SIGN POST, WALL THICKNESS .109", FURNISHED AND INSTALLED WITH ONE (1) ALUMINUM ROUND DOME CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
44" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH AS REQUIRED TO ACCOMMODATE SIGN(S) AND FOUNDATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPTH VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
H-20 DOT RATED POLYVINYL CHLORIDE (PVC) DRAIN BASIN (NYLOPLAST OR APPROVED EQUAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" BEDDING CHIPS  (SEE PLANS FOR DEPTHS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(OR APPROVED EQUAL) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO. 12 GAUGE TRACER WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BEDDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER WIRE TO BE BROUGHT TO SURFACE INSIDE STRUCTURE THROUGH A SMALL HOLE  (INCLUDE 12" OF SLACK)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED SPOIL MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIAMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NYLOPLAST STEEL GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2% SLOPE (MAX.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIDTH PER PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED EARTH SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"X6" W1.4 X W1.4 WELDED WIRE FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWO (2) No. 4 BARS (ENTIRE LENGTH) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT SECTION (PER PLAN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" TOOLED RADIUS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED DENSE AGGREGATE BASE (PER PLAN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MINIMUM



S.
 5

7t
h 

ST
RE

ET

EXISTING BUILDING
FIRST FLOOR ELEV. = 715.75

TURF

TURF

TURF

L-1.0LANDSCAPE PLAN

LE
E

 M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L
S

. 5
7t

h
 S

TR
EE

T
FR

A
N

K
LI

N
, W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

10-3-25_1
2025100125



SYMBOL BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

TREES

SHRUBS

GRASSES

SHRUB EVERGREENS

SYMBOL CODE DESCRIPTION QTY

Planting

Planting Accessories

GENERAL LANDSCAPE NOTES;
1. Topsoil return to depth of 6" minimum is by excavating

contractor. Returned topsoil to have no rock larger than 1",
construction debris and/or roots in the soil. Contact
general contractor if soil is not acceptable for proper
plant growth.

2. Always contact Diggers Hotline (800-242-8511) or
JULIE 811 (or 1-800-892-0123) before proceeding with
any work.

3. Landscape contractor is required to visit the site
and review all civil plans related to the project. The
civil plans take precedence over the landscape plans.

4. Plant material to be of the highest quality available
and should not include # 2 grade trees, evergreens or
shrubs. Landscape contractor is to verify plant
quantities Labeled plants have precedence over the plant
table. Verify quantity with a hand takeoff of the plan.
Any substitutions of plant type, quantity or size must be
approved by city forester.

5. Planting beds shall receive a 3" layer of high quality
non-dyed shredded hardwood mulch. 3’ diameter tree
rings shall be installed around all trees and
evergreens in the turf areas.

6. Spade cut plant beds and tree rings with a 4" deep
shovel cut.

7. Seeded lawn areas to have high quality Bluegrass
seed blend for sunny areas, shade areas to have a
Bluegrass and Fescue blend of seed. See civil plans
for turf restoration. Apply a 10-10-10 starter fertilizer
after turf has germinated. Follow manufactures
direction on fertilizer application rates.

8. Erosion blanket shall be installed on seeded areas
using 90 day single net, double net and shall be installed
per the required use. Follow manufactures stapling guidelines to
ensure proper stabilization. Install erosion blanket for
dormant seed applications (after November 1st) or
mid-summer installations or where ever applicable to
promote healthy turf establishment.

9. Landscape contractor is responsible to maintain the
site for a period of 45 days after substantial
completion of project. This will include watering, mowing
of turf areas as needed, weeding plant beds,
maintaining a clean site and other activities to ensure
proper growth of the landscape.

10. If an irrigation system is not installed a temporary
irrigation system shall be set up for a period of 30
days to water lawn areas. Install drip irrigation for
plant beds. Install timers that will enable the new turf
areas to receive enough water to properly germinate
seed. Owner to provide access to water from outside
of building to facilitate proper watering. Seed areas
may require additional time for proper establishment

11. Warranty of plants, trees, evergreens, shrubs shall
be for a period of 18 months from date of
substantial completion. Perennials, ornamental grasses,
annuals shall be guaranteed for one (1) growing season.
One replacement will be required of each dead plant
at the end of the warranty period.

TREE PLANTING DETAIL101

SHRUB PLANTING103

LANDSCAPE SCHEDULES AND DETAILS L-2.0

LE
E

 M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L
S

. 5
7t

h
 S

TR
EE

T
FR

A
N

K
LI

N
, W

IS
C

O
N

S
IN

10-3-25_1
2025100125

EXISTING CONDITIONS

NO SCALE



 
 
 

 
BLANK PAGE 



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 7

IV. Emerging And Potential Business Districts

The general locations described in this section are districts or areas within the City of Franklin that have
market conditions and available sites suitable for significant future economic development and tax base
enhancement.

The first category of sites include those areas with the potential for retail commercial development, based
on market factors and availability of suitable sites.

The second category of sites are those areas that have the potential for light industrial, distribution, “flex-
space,” or office development.  This category includes sites that could be acquired and developed by the
City of Franklin and/or private developers as future business parks.

Potential Retail Development Districts

The following are emerging retail development districts that have been identified in the Phase II Retail
Development Potential report prepared by the McComb Group as areas with the market potential for
additional retail development.   All of the forecasts of retail space demand quoted in this section reflect the
‘mid-range” projections from the McComb Group report.

Franklin Corners—Loomis, 76th and Rawson (Area A)

The area west of Franklin Corners at the interchange of Loomis Road and Rawson Road has the potential
to develop as a future Power Center district or community-scale retail district serving all of the City of
Franklin and portions of Hales Corners, Greendale, Greenfield and Oak Creek.

There are currently approximately 236,000 square feet of retail space in the Franklin Corners area.  The
McComb Group report indicates that this general area could support an additional 235,000 square feet (24
acres) of leasable general retail space, or an additional 320,000 square feet (32 acres) of Power Center
development by 2002.

By the year 2020, the Franklin Corners area could support an additional 340,000 square feet (34 acres) of
leasable general retail space or an additional 650,000 square feet (65 acres) of Power Center
development.  From both a tax development and a community center perspective, the Power Center
concept is preferable.

41 Outdoor Twin Theater - South 27th Street (Area C)

South 27th Street south of Rawson Avenue is expected to be influenced by “big box” or Power Center
retailers and other commercial uses extending southward along the South 27th Street corridor.  This
commercial district could potentially extend as far south as the 41 Outdoor Twin Theater site north of
Drexel Avenue.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 8

The McComb Group Retail Development Potential report estimates that the area in the vicinity of the
intersection of Rawson Avenue and South 27th Street corridor could support an additional 200,000 square
feet (20 acres) of retail space by year 2002 and an additional 465,000 (47 acres) of leasable retail space
by year 2020.

Whitnall View Area (Area J)

The Whitnall View Area is the third area in Franklin with the market potential for significant retail
development.  The McComb Group report indicates that by the year 2002 the Whitnall View area could
support an additional 70,000 square feet (7 acres) of leasable retail space.  By the year 2020 the Whitnall
View area could support an additional 320,000 square feet (32 acres) of leasable retail space.

Civic Centre Area (Area I)

Currently, there is less than 5 acres of retail development in the Civic Centre area.

The McComb Group report indicates that the Civic Centre area could support an additional 45,000 (5
acres) square feet of new retail development by the year 2002 and an additional 165,000 square feet (17
acres) of leasable retail space by the year 2020.

Crossroads Area (Area H)

The Crossroads area is expected to evolve into a convenience and neighborhood-oriented retail district
serving the south central neighborhoods of the City.  The recently constructed Walgreen’s is the “pioneer”
retail business in the area and represents the first major redevelopment project in this part of the City.  The
City staff and a private developer have been discussing the concept of neighborhood-oriented retail
development on the east side of Loomis Road that would become the primary convenience center for the
Forest Hills and Woodview Neighborhoods.

The McComb Group’s Retail Development Potential report indicates that the Crossroads Center Area
could support an additional 40,000 square feet (4 acres) of leasable retail space by the year 2002 and an
additional 100,000 square feet (10 acres) by year 2020.

Town Centre (Area F) and Ryan Road Corridor (Area E)

The City staff has asked the consultant team to consider whether the Town Centre (Area F) or Ryan
Road Corridor (Area F) could support retail commercial development.

The McComb Group report does not indicate a significant commercial retail demand in either Area E or
Area F, primarily due to the lack of housing development to the south.  These areas should not be targeted
as a neighborhood/community retail center site.  There may, however, be some potential for limited
convenience commercial development fronting on Ryan Road at one or more key intersections.  This could
include a convenience store, service station, and fast-food restaurants.   There may also be the potential
for limited retail and office development ancillary to the Franklin Industrial/Business Park.  Ancillary uses
could include daycare, financial institutions, copy shops, or mailing services.  These opportunities and
potentially available sites are discussed in the following section.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 9

Potential Business Park Areas

The following section describes the general areas in the City of Franklin identified by the consultant team
as having business park development potential.

Primary Business Parks

The City of Franklin should be seeking one or more sites with the potential for developing additional
primary business park comparable in size and character to the existing Franklin Industrial Park.  The
projected absorption rate for sites within a well designed and appropriately located business park in the
City of Franklin is 37 acres per year.

The general criteria for identifying sites as suitable for a primary business park development include:

 Good to excellent access to Interstate 94 and other major regional highways
(5 minute travel time or less)

 At least 180 acres of developable land; ideally 360 or more acres
 Available public water supply and sanitary sewers
 Relatively level sites with soils conditions and drainage suitable for construction of industrial

buildings without incurring extraordinary construction costs
 Separation from residential neighborhoods and other potentially conflicting land uses

Secondary Business Parks

There is also the market demand and potential in the City of Franklin for one or more secondary business
parks that would be targeted toward smaller users, such as contractors, local distributors, and smaller
industries.  Sites along major arterials or at the entrances to secondary business parks may be suitable for
limited convenience or ancillary retail and service businesses.

These uses generally requiring 5,000 to 35,000 square foot buildings (1 to 3 acre sites).  This type of
business park would require less area than a primary business park, but would need to meet most of the
other site criteria.  The acreage range for a site suitable for secondary business park development is 60 to
100 acres.

The following general areas meet some or most of the above criteria for either primary or secondary
business park development:

Southeast Environs – 27th, Oakwood, County Line Area (Area D)

The County Line area is located in the southeast corner of the City south of Ryan Road, west of South
27th Street and east of the Root River Parkway.  The existing industrial base in this area consists primarily
of businesses that require outside storage and have relatively low tax base value, such as trucking, waste
disposal equipment storage, and pallet manufacturing.  These are not uses that the City should target for
the future.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 10

The County Line Industrial Area has approximately 540 acres of land that are potentially developable, of
which 100 acres are currently used for industrial or semi-industrial purposes.   Area D has direct access to
I-94 via either the Ryan Road or STH 241 interchange.

Because of the good access to I-94 and the relative availability of land, Area D is potentially the most
attractive location in the City of Franklin for a new primary business park.  There is the potential to
connect a potential business park in the County Line area with the existing Franklin Business Park via
Oakwood Road.  This would create a continuous economic development zone in the southeastern quadrant
of the City and capitalize on the “brand equity” that has been created through the success of the existing
Franklin Business Park.

Because of the proximity to existing residences north of area D and at scattered points within it, there
would be a need for careful berming and/or screening to provide a buffers from the business uses.  There
may also be opportunities to purchase some of the homes within the area, either now or in the future, with
the permission of the current homeowners.

Ryan Road North (Area E)

Sites on the north side Ryan Road near 51st Street have some limited potential for a small secondary
business park and/or commercial uses ancillary to the Franklin Industrial Park.  The primary drawback to
sites in Area E is the limited depth of the sites and the close proximity of residential development to the
north.

Town Centre - Ryan Road Corridor (Areas  F)

The second major area with business park potential is the area both north and south of Ryan Road
(Highway 100) west of the Franklin Industrial Park.  With the planned improvement of Ryan Road to a
four-lane urban standard, this area will have improved access to I-94.  There is already a small cluster of
industrial and semi-industrial uses south of Ryan Road and west of 76th Street.

While there are a number of good individual development sites and sites suitable for a secondary business
park, the site is not suitable for primary business park development.

One fundamental drawback to developing a primary business park in Area F is the absence of a
single block of developable land large enough to accommodate large-scale industrial uses.  Ryan
Road and 76th Street bisect the areas potentially most suitable for a business park.

A second fundamental drawback is the area’s distance from I-94, the major corridor for movement
of goods and workers to and from area businesses.

There are also numerous rural residences in the area that would either need to be acquired or
buffered from surrounding business and industrial development.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 11

The former Highway 100 Outdoor Theater site, located north of the curve, is a large potentially
developable site.  Although the site has topographic characteristics that would make it suitable for
secondary business park development, the City’s adopted Comprehensive Master Plan identifies the site
as a potential middle or high school site.  Given the proximity to a growing residential neighborhood, this is
a more appropriate use for the site.

41 Outdoor Twin Theater Area (Area C)

The 41 Outdoor Twin Theater site has some attributes which qualify this area as a potential secondary
business park site with lots oriented towards smaller users, such as offices, contractors, distributors, and
start-up manufacturers.  The 73-acre parcel is a level site available for redevelopment.  There is an
additional 5 acres of potentially developable former school property north of the 41 Outdoor Twin Theater
site that could be attached to the site.

The 41 Outdoor Twin Theater site could be developed by the City and/or a private developer as secondary
business park targeted to users requiring 5,000 to 35,000 square feet buildings (1 to 3 acre sites).

Because of the proximity to both existing and planned residential neighborhoods west of the site along 35th

Street and south of Drexel Avenue there would be a need for careful berming and/or screening to provide
a buffer from the business uses.

Note: As noted in the previous section, the site is also likely to be attractive as a general retail or
Power Center site.  This site would basically be an extension of the type of commercial
development that has already occurred along the South 27th Street corridor north of
Rawson Avenue.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 12

V.  Analysis Of Specific Sites

The City of Franklin has asked the consultant team to analyze specific sites for the twelve general
planning areas that may have nonresidential development potential.  The following is a site-specific
description of the twelve planning areas as originally identified by the City and subsequently modified by
the consulting team.

The attached conceptual maps illustrate the key potential development sites for each of the twelve
planning areas. It is important to realize that these are conceptual boundaries only for preliminary
tax development analysis.  Actual site boundaries would depend upon further planning,
negotiations with land owners, decisions by the Plan Commission, and many other factors.

General conceptual street circulation patterns are identified in some of the planning areas with the greatest
nonresidential development potential.  In several cases, the City of Franklin Planning Department has
prepared more detailed conceptual site plans. Again, these are only illustrative.

Each map also illustrates existing Environmental Corridors, which we exclude from development
and do not count as developable acres.

Area A  Franklin Corners (Loomis, 76th, and Rawson)

Site A-1

Developable Acreage: 43 acres
Access: Loomis Road and Rawson Avenue
Recommended Use: Community Retail Center, Power Center

Comments: Site A-1, which is located in the southwest quadrant of the Loomis Road-Rawson Avenue
interchange, has been identified by the McComb Group as the most suitable site for large-
scale retail commercial development in the central portion of Franklin and in the Franklin
School District.

Retail development of Site A-1 would require access from Rawson Road and access
from Loomis Road (Highway 36) south of the exit ramps to the Rawson Road
interchange.

Most of Site A-1 is currently planned for estate residential development and any
commercial development would require a revised plan designation and rezoning.  There
would need to be extensive buffering on the west and north sides of Site A-1 to provide
separation from adjoining residential areas. The berming and screening is indicated on
each conceptual map.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 13

Site A-2

Developable Acreage: 42 acres
Access: Loomis Road and Rawson Avenue
Recommended Use: Community Retail Center

Comments: Site A-2, which is located in the southeast quadrant of the Loomis Road-Rawson Avenue
interchange, is also one of the most suitable sites for retail development in the central
portion of the City.  Site A-2 adjoins the existing Pick-N-Save site.  It would be accessible
to a very limited extent from the Pick-N-Save parking lot and to a greater degree by
extending Terrance Drive extended westward.  Development of Site A-2 would also
require direct access from Loomis Road south of the Rawson Road access ramps, which
would be at the same point on Loomis as access to Site A-1.

Most of Site A-2 is currently planned for residential development and any commercial
development would require a revised plan designation and rezoning. There would need to
be extensive buffering on the east and south sides of Site A-2 to provide separation from
adjoining residential neighborhoods.

Development of Site A-2 would require careful site planning around the delineated
Environmental Corridor adjoining the site.

Site A-3

Developable Acreage: 40 acres (with potential expansion to the north)
Access: Rawson Avenue and Old Loomis Road
Recommended Use: Community Retail Center, Power Center

Comments: Site A-3, which is located in the northwest quadrant of the Loomis Road-Rawson Avenue
interchange, is potentially suitable for retail commercial development.  The eastern portion
of Site A-3 is currently planned and zoned for recreation use as the Crystal Ridge Ski Hill.

Portions of Site A-3 were formally a landfill site and there may be significant
environmental limitations.  The extent of potential environmental limitations are currently
unknown. If the environmental constraints associated with the former landfill site could be
overcome, there would be additional potential commercial expansion area extending
northeast of Crystal Ridge Ski Hill along the west side of 76th Street.  This area has not
been designated as a probable commercial site in the near future due to the environmental
uncertainties, but if these limitations could be overcome, the McComb group rates the
extended A-3 site with A-1 as the areas of highest appeal to major retailers.  Major
retailers are accustomed to working with sites with environmental challenges, since they
have great options regarding where to site their stores in relation to parking lots.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 14

Commercial development on Site A-3 would require buffering and screening along on the
southwest corner of the site to provide separation from an adjoining residential
neighborhood along Hawthorne Court.

Site A-4

Developable Acreage: Approximately 16 acres
Access: Rawson Avenue
Recommended Use: Infill Commercial or Office

Comments: Site A-4, is located east of 76th Street along both the north and south sides of Rawson
Avenue.  Site A-4 contains a number of potential infill parcels ranging from 1 to 4 acres
size.  These sites have strong potential for infill commercial, medical office, financial
institution or professional office development.  None of the parcels in Site A-4 are large
enough to accommodate a Power Center or shopping center.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 15



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 16

Area B  Quarry Environs

Site B-1

Developable Acreage: 43 acres
Access: Rawson Avenue and 51st Street
Recommended Use: Secondary Commercial, Office, or Institutional

Comments: Site B-1, is located on the north side of Rawson Avenue approximately two miles east of
76th Street.  The site is midway between the Franklin Corners retail area and the South
27th Street retail district.

The southern portion of the Site B-1 fronts on Rawson Avenue and is delineated as a B-3
Community Business District in the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan.  The northern
half of Site B-1 is designated for institutional use.  The Polish Community Center is
currently planned to be constructed on portions of Site B-1.

Development of Site B-1 is likely to be incremental as individual properties fronting on
Rawson Avenue are assembled.  Site B-1 does not offer the opportunity for concentrated
retail center development, such as in Franklin Corners or South 27th Street corridor sites,
but the area is suitable for a variety of service-oriented commercial business, convenience
retail, offices or institutional uses.

Site B-2

Developable Acreage: 21 acres
Access: Rawson Avenue
Recommended Use: Secondary Commercial, Office or Institutional

Comments: Site B-2 is located on Rawson Avenue east of the WEPCO maintenance facility at the
corner of 51st Street and Rawson.  Approximately eight residences currently occupy the
21-acre site.

Development potential for Site B-2 is very similar to Site B-1.  Site B-2 is likely to be
developed incrementally as individual properties fronting on Rawson Avenue are
assembled.

Site B-2 is designated as M-1 Limited Industrial District in the City’s Comprehensive
Master Plan. The City should consider redesigning the planned land uses in this site from
M-1 to B-3 or another comparable commercial district.   Retaining the M-1 designation in
this area would continue to allow more industrial uses into a predominately residential
neighborhood and would potentially devalue the adjoining land and impede higher value
future development.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 17



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 18

Area C  41 Outdoor Twin Theater Environs

Site C-1

Developable Acreage: 32 acres
Access: 27th Street and Rawson Avenue
Recommended Uses: Retail Commercial Redevelopment

Comments: Site C-I is located on the southwest quadrant of the intersection of South 27th Street and
Rawson Avenue.  Due to its location at the intersection of two major arterial streets and
excellent accessibility from I-94, this area is one of the best commercial sites is the City.
Site C-1 is designated in the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan as a combination B-3 and
B-4 Commercial, B-6 Office, and I-1 Institutional.

The properties along Rawson Road west of 27th Street are mostly older residences.

Development of Site C-1 to its “highest and best” retail commercial use would require
assemblage of a number of smaller parcels and demolition of existing structures.  The
McComb Group rates C-1 as the best of the three C sites from a retail market
perspective because it has the best market access and the best relationship to the existing
retail development north of Rawson.

Site C-2

Developable Acreage: 35 acres
Access: 27th Street
Recommended Uses: Retail Commercial Redevelopment

Comments: Site C-2 is located South 27th Street north of the 41 Outdoor Twin Theater site.  There
are existing commercial and institutional uses along the South 27th Street frontage.

The portion of Site C-2 fronting on South 27th Street is designated in the City’s
Comprehensive Master Plan as a B-4.  The western half of the site is planned for medium
density residential development.  The City should consider redesigning the planned land
uses for all Sites C-2 to B-4 or another comparable commercial district.

Development of Site C-2 to its “highest and best” use would require assemblage of a
number of smaller parcels and demolition of existing structures.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 19

Site C-3 (Expanded 41-Twin Site)

Developable Acreage: 78 acres
Access: 27th Street and Drexel Avenue
Recommended Use: Secondary Business Park  or Retail Center (Alternative)

Comments: Site C-3 is the former 41 Outdoor Twin Theater site and the former elementary school
site located on South 27th Street north of Drexel Avenue.  Site C-3 is a uniquely valuable
site due to the fact that it is a large parcel requiring neither assemblage nor extensive
demolition and site preparation to create buildable land.

The 41 Outdoor Twin Theater site portion of Site C-3 is designated in the City’s
Comprehensive Master Plan as a BP Business Park.  The former school site is
designated B-4 Commercial.  These are appropriate planned land use designations.

The City should consider either developing the 41 Outdoor Twin Theater site or partnering
with a private developer to create a secondary business park targeted for uses requiring
5,000 to 35,000 buildings (1 to 3 acre sites).  These uses should not be located in the
City’s primary business parks, but should be located in planned business park settings
buffered from residential uses.  Careful planning of the site with an internal roadway
would enhance access, minimize impact along 27th Street, and allow development of the
entire site for secondary business park purposes without any residential development.

Alternatively, the 41 Twin site could accommodate some retail development, though the
McComb Group analysis points to some limitations in terms of access and connectedness
to the existing retail district north of Rawson.

The proposed secondary business park located on the 41 Outdoor Twin Theater site
would require extensive berming and screening from residential neighborhoods on the
south and west sides of the site.  Deed restrictions and protective convenience should
regulate the appearance of the buildings and sites and should restrict outside storage.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 20



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 21

Area D  Southeast Environs

Site D-1

Developable Acreage: 42 acres
Access: South 27th Street and Ryan Road
Recommended Use: Convenience Retail Commercial Redevelopment

Comments: Site D-1 is located on the southwest quadrant of the intersection of South 27th Street and
Ryan Road.  Due to its location at the intersection of two major arterial streets and direct
access from I-94, this location is potentially one of the best convenience retail sites in the
City.

Site D-1 is designated in the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan as a combination B-2 and
B-4 Commercial and R-4 and R-5 Residential. There are existing business uses on the
portions of Site D-1 fronting on South 27th Street, but most of the non-frontage portion of
the site is undeveloped.

Development of Site D-1 to its “highest and best” retail commercial use would require
assemblage of a number of smaller parcels and redevelopment of existing structures.

Site D-2

Developable Acreage: 128 acres
Access: South 27th Street and Oakwood Road
Recommended Use: Primary Business Park

Comments: Site D-2 is located on South 27th Street north of Oakwood Road.  Due to its good access
from I-94, general topography, and relatively large size, Site D-2 is one of the best
potential sites, if not the single best potential site for new primary business park
development in the City. The proximity Oakwood Golf Course and the Root River
Parkway would have amenity value for some types of businesses that would consider
locating in the park, including the office uses that many residents seek to attract.
Business Park development of D-2 would also help to pull new primary business uses
north from the existing less desirable truck terminal and outdoor storage uses along West
Elm and other areas within D-3.

With the exception of a limited amount of frontage development along 27th Street and
several homes along Oakwood Road, Site D-2 is mostly undeveloped.  The exact
boundaries of a D-2 business park would require adequate buffering from existing
residential areas and due consideration of the Oakwood Road homeowners.

The City should focus on reserving this area for primary business park use.  The City
should work with the property owners to help develop this area as a master-planned



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 22

business park, either through private or public development. Site D-2 is designated in the
City’s Comprehensive Master Plan and Unified Development Code as R-2 Residential.
The City should amend the Plan and Zoning Ordinance to designate this area as BP
Business Park.

The site plan for Site D-2 will require buffering and screening from remaining Oakwood
Road homes, Oakwood Park Golf Course on the west, and the residential neighborhood
on the north.  Approximately 30 acres in the northwest quadrant are an upland woods and
part of the designated Environmental Corridor.  The woods would provide and important
buffer to development north of Fitzsimmons Road.   The woods, along with a bermed
corridor along the south side of Fitzsimmons Road, should be preserved as a buffer
between the proposed business park and the residential neighborhood north of
Fitzsimmons Road.

The City would also need to work with owners of existing homes within the D-2 area to
determine whether some or all wished to sell their property at fair market value to the
City, either now or when they wished to relocate at some time in the future.
Alternatively, the park could develop with buffering and screening for these homes.

The site plan for a primary business park on Site D-2 will require maintaining an attractive
frontage along both 27th Street and Oakwood Road, which will serve as a secondary
access road and connector to the Franklin Industrial Park to the west.  Conceptually, the
improvements along Oakwood Road should provide linkage with the Franklin Industrial
Park.

Site D-3

Developable Acreage: 90-190 acres  (90 core acres, plus 100 acres possibly available from the County)
(100 more acres of existing industrial development that may be subject to
redevelopment in the future, but it would be too expensive to redevelop in the
short term)

Access: South 27th Street, Oakwood Road, and West Elm Road
Recommended Use: Primary Business Park

Comments: Site D-3 is located on South 27th Street south of Oakwood Road.  Site D-3 possesses
many of the same general locational attributes as Site D-2, though without relation to
Oakwood Golf Course.  However, approximately 100 acres are already partially
developed.  Most of this area is used for relatively low-intensity and low-value outside
storage.  Some of the existing uses in Site D-3 constitute “NIMBY-types” of uses that
have some nuisance characteristics and relate poorly to a primary business park.

Most of Site D-3 is designated in the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan M-1 Light
Industrial and has been conceptually platted in the plan for approximately 5 acre lots.  The
existing land use designation should be retained, but the City should restudy the street and
lot layout in the update of the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 23

The City should focus on reserving the undeveloped portion of Site D-3 for future
business park use.  The City should also work with existing businesses in the area to
minimize their nuisance impacts and screen outside storage areas.  If some businesses
relocate in the future, the City should consider acquiring their land.

The site plan for a business park on Site D-3 will require maintaining an attractive
frontage along major arterials and screening or buffering some of the less desirable
existing industrial uses.

Note:  It should be noted that the western portion of Site D-3 includes
approximately 100 acres that are currently owned by Milwaukee County and
are managed as part of the Root River Parkway.  The City should explore the
potential for acquisition of this land from the Milwaukee County for business
park development.   The City should also investigate the potential for a land
exchange that would involve exchanging City-owned or acquired
conservancy land for developable portions of the Milwaukee County land in
Site D-3.

The proposal for acquiring portions of the County-owned land applies only
to areas that are not delineated as Environmental Corridor by SEWRPC.  The
Environmental Corridors, which include all wetlands, floodplains, and
mature woods should remain in County ownership and should continue to be
managed as permanent conservancy land.  The only land acquired for
business park development should be unwooded uplands.  The business park
should be designed to carefully avoid adverse impacts to the Root River
Parkway and the sites should be oriented and designed so that the
environmental lands and trail system are an aesthetic and recreational
amenity for the business park.

Site D-4

Developable Acreage: 122 acres
Access: West Elm Road and County Line Road
Recommended Use: Primary Business and Industrial Park Expansion Area

Comments: Site D-4 is located on County Line Road south of Site D-3. This area should be reserved
for future expansion of the primary business park proposed for Sites D2 and D-3.  Site D-
4 is designated in the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan as M-1 Light Industrial and has
been conceptually platted in the plan for approximately 5-acre lots.

The planning for a business park on Site D-4 will require careful screening and buffering
for portions of the site adjoining the Root River Parkway.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 24



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 25

Area E  Ryan Road North

Site E-1

Developable Acreage: 60 acres
Access: Ryan Road and 51st Street
Recommended Use: Ancillary Commercial, Secondary Business Park

Comments: Site E-1 is located on the north side of Ryan Road between the Root River Parkway and
46th Street.

Site E-1 is designated in the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan as a combination of B-1
Neighborhood Commercial and B-6 Business Park west of 51st Street and B-1
Neighborhood Commercial east of 51st Street.

The McComb Group Retail Development Potential report indicates that there is relatively
little demand for retail commercial development in this part of the City.  However, with
the large employment base in the Franklin Business Park and the potential for additional
secondary business park development in the southern part of the City, there is likely to be
some market demand for convenience businesses and business services that would be
ancillary to the business park.

The portion of Site E-1 designated for BP Business Park would be suitable for some types
of ancillary commercial and office uses that do not require large lots.  The site is not large
enough to function as a primary business park, but may be a good site for either an office-
oriented secondary business park or individual business sites.

Development of Site E-1 is likely to occur incrementally as individual properties fronting
on Ryan Road are assembled.   Any development within Site E-1 would need to be
carefully buffered and screened from the adjoining areas to the north, which are planned
for residential development.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 26



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 27

Area F  Town Centre

Site F-1

Developable Acreage: 96 acres
Access: Ryan Road and 76th Street
Recommended Use: Secondary Business Park, Ancillary Commercial

Comments: Site F-1 is located on the north side of Ryan Road between the Root River Parkway and
76th Street.  Much of Site F-1 consists of a former military installation, which is currently
owned by Milwaukee County.  Site F-1 adjoins the Milwaukee County House of
Corrections site.

The portion of Site F-1 at the corner of 76th Street and Ryan Road is designated in the
City’s Comprehensive Master Plan as B-6 Professional Office.  The portion of the site
owned by Milwaukee County is designated A-1 Agricultural District.

The City should re-designate all of Site F-1 as BP Business Park.  The site would be
suitable for a secondary business park that would be targeted toward office users and
other businesses that do not require larger lots.

The City of Franklin should work closely with Milwaukee County to return the portions of
the site that are not needed for the correction facility to the tax base.  The former military
installation site is a potentially valuable piece of development land.  Unlike Site E-1, which
has many similar locational characteristics, development of Site F-1 would not require as
much land assemblage and demolition and would be a superior secondary business park
site.  Site F-1 may also be suitable for one or more single users with large area
requirements.

Site F-2

Developable Acreage: 78 acres
Access: Ryan Road and 76th Street
Recommended Use: Secondary Business Park, Ancillary Commercial

Comments: Site F-2 is located on the north side of Ryan Road west of 76th Street.

The southern portion of Site F-2 within 600’ of Ryan Road is designated in the
Comprehensive Master Plan as B-1 Neighborhood Business.  The northern portion of the
site is designated for residential development.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 28

All of Site F-2, in combination with Site F-1, should designated for BP Business Park.
Site F-2 would be suitable for a secondary business park targeted toward uses that do not
require large lots. Site F-1 may also be suitable for one or more single users with large lot
area requirements.

Any nonresidential development in the northern part of Site F-2 will require careful
screening and buffering to protect the residential development to the north.

Site F-3

Developable Acreage: 49 acres
Access: Ryan Road and 76th Street
Recommended Use: Possible Secondary Business Park, Light Industrial

Comments: Site F-3 is located on the south side of Ryan Road east of 76th Street.

The site is designated M-1 Light Industrial in the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan.  Soil
conditions and the floodplain for the Root River and Ryan Creek limit the development
potential of Site F-3.  Sanitary sewer is projected for the area but not yet available.

The street circulation system, as shown on the site map, should be completed if there is
sufficient projected demand for F-3 as a secondary business park.  However, once the
central street is constructed the site will yield only a relatively small number of usable
secondary business park lots.

Site F-4

Developable Acreage: 98 Acres (plus 40 acres of existing development)
Access: Ryan Road and 76th Street
Recommended Use: Possible Secondary Business Park

Comments: Site F-4 is located on the south side of Ryan Road west of 76th Street.  This area includes
the City of Franklin Public Works Facility and several other semi-industrial uses.  All
Souls Cemetery is located west of the Public Works Facility on Ryan Road.  There are
numerous rural residences along 76th Street south of Ryan Road.

The portions of Site F-4 currently used for industrial and semi-industrial uses are
designated M-1 Light Industrial and I-1 Institutional in the City’s Comprehensive Master
Plan.  Most of the frontage along 76th Street south of Ryan Road is designated either
Rural Residential or Agricultural Preservation.

A major limiting factor for development of Site F-4 is that a significant portion of the site
has been acquired for future expansion of All Souls Cemetery. Unless, the City or a
private business park developer is able to acquire the cemetery expansion site, the
development potential of Site F-4 is severely limited.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 29

Low conditions and floodplain for Ryan Creek also limit the expansion potential of Site F-
4.   Future expansion to the southwest would be restricted by environmental conditions.
Sanitary sewer is projected for the area but not yet available.

Site F-5

Developable Acreage: 40 Acres
Access: St. Martins Road (Highway 100)
Recommended Use: Institutional

The former Highway 100 Outdoor Theater site is a developable parcel located north of the Highway 100
curve.

The City’s Comprehensive master Plan identifies this site as an Institutional site, well-suited as a site for a
future middle or high school.  Given the proximity to several expanding residential neighborhoods and the
good supply of alternative secondary industrial parcels, school use of the parcel would be more appropriate
than secondary business park development.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 30



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 31

Area G  Southwest Environs

Site G-1

Developable Acreage: 119 acres
Access: Loomis Road (Highway 36), Ryan Road, and  116th Street.
Recommended Use: Holding District – Interim Agriculture

Comments: Site G-1 is located on either side of Loomis Road (Highway 36) southwest of the
Crossroads Area.

All of Area G is outside the Sewer Service Area delineated by SEWRPC, but could
potentially be serviced from the proposed force main connecting to the landfill area to the
southwest.  In the City’s long-range planning, Area G has been reserved for rural
preservation and most of the area is designated in the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan
as either A-1 or A-2 Agricultural.

Because of a combination of the absence of utilities and distance from I-94, the consulting
team has viewed all of Area G as a “holding district” to be retained as much as possible in
agricultural or very low density rural residential use.

At some point in the future Site G-1 will have significant development value as Loomis
Road continues to evolve as a corridor for residential development.  The County may also
plan for an upgraded circumferal outer belt highway at some point in the future.

The area should not be prematurely subdivided for residential or other uses until market
conditions and availability of utilities can support development of district, perhaps as an
industrial park.

Site G-2

Developable Acreage: 216 acres
Access: Loomis Road (Highway 36), Ryan Road, and  112th Street.
Recommended Use: Holding District – Interim Agriculture

Comments: Site G-2 is has locational attributes similar to Site G-1 and should be maintained in interim
agricultural or very low-density rural residential use until market conditions and availability
of utilities make the area more suitable for higher density development.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 32



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 33

Area H  Crossroads and Loomis Road Corridor

Site H-1

Developable Acreage: 33 acres
Access: Loomis Road (Highway 36) and St. Martin’s Road (Highway 100)
Recommended Use: Neighborhood Commercial

Comments: Site H-1 is a key commercial site located at the crossroads of the two major arterials in
the western portion of Franklin.  The Crossroads has been designated in the City’s
Comprehensive Master Plan as a neighborhood business district.  The new Walgreen’s is
the pioneer retail business at this location.

The McComb Group’s Retail Development Potential report indicates that the Crossroads
area could support an additional 40,000 square feet (4 acres) of convenience-oriented
retail space by year 2002 and an additional 100,000 square feet (10 acres) by the year
2020.

As this area develops, the key issues will include assembling sufficiently large parcels to
create a cohesive development pattern and preserving the wetlands and environmental
corridors.  Pedestrian and bicycle access to adjoining residential neighborhoods will be a
key design consideration in developing a neighborhood-oriented commercial center.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 34



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 35

Area I  Civic Centre

Site I-1

Developable Acreage: 32 acres
Access: Drexel Avenue and Lover’s Lane Road (Highway 100)
Recommended Uses: Residential

Comments: Site I-1 is a vacant developable site in the northwest quadrant of the intersection of
Drexel Avenue and Lover’s Lane Road.

The site has been designated in the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan as part of the R-
3E Estate Lot Subdivision District.  The adjoining area to the east has been platted as
estate lots.  This area has been one of the most successful residential districts in the City
with homes priced significantly higher than the median home values in Franklin.

There are large parcels in the Civic Centre area south of Drexel Road that are planned
for commercial development.  These parcels are expected to be able to meet the market
demand for commercial land in this part of the City

The City should retain the existing estate lot residential designation for Site I-1.

Site I-2

Developable Acreage: 40 acres
Access: Drexel Avenue and Lover’ Lane Road (Highway 100)
Recommended Uses: Neighborhood Retail Center, Commercial Services, and Institutional

Comments: Site I-2 is located along the south side of Drexel Avenue between Lovers Lane Road and
Loomis Road.

Site I-2 has been designated in the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan as a combination
of CC Community Centre and I-1 Institutional.  The plan also indicates that a mixture of
neighborhood retail, office, medical and public uses would be appropriate for the area.

The McComb Group’s Retail Development Potential report indicates that the Civic Centre
area could support an additional 45,000 square feet (5 acres) of retail space by year 2002
and an additional 165,000 square feet (17 acres) by the year 2020.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 36

Site I-2 is the best location within the Civic Centre area for a neighborhood-scale shopping
center.  The site has excellent access from the major north-south arterial highways and
from Drexel Avenue, which is a major east-west collector street.  The ownership parcels
within Site I-2 are relatively large and the site would not require as much assemblage or
demolition as some of the other potential commercial sites in the City.

Site I-3

Developable Acreage: 24 acres
Access: Loomis Road (Highway 36)
Recommended Uses: Commercial Services, Institutional, and Office

Comments: Site I-3 is located on the west side of Loomis Road, across the street from the municipal
government center.   Site I-3 is designated in the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan as a
combination of CC Community Centre, I-1 Institutional, and R-8 Multiple Family
Residential Districts.

The frontage along Loomis Road has excellent exposure for professional offices, financial
services, and medical clinics.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 37

Area J Whitnall View

Site J-1

Developable Acreage: 80 acres
Access: Lover’s Lane Road (Highway 100) and Forest Home Avenue
Recommended Uses: Retail Commercial

Comments: Site J-1 (Hales Corners Speedway) is a key commercial redevelopment site located in the
northwest quadrant of the City.  The site is accessible from Lover’s Lane Road and from
Forest Home Avenue.

The McComb Group’s Retail Development Potential report indicates that the Whitnall
View area could support an additional 70,000 square feet (7 acres) of leasable retail space
by the year 2002 and an additional 330,000 square feet (33 acres) by the year 2020.  The
Hales Corners Speedway site is the most suitable site in the area to support commercial
development of that scale within the Whitnall View area..

The site is large enough to also support limited ancillary office development and perhaps
some office/showroom development as well.

The City’s Comprehensive Master Plan designates Site J-1 as a combination of M-1 Light
Industrial and BP Business Park.  The redevelopment concept for the Hales Corners
Speedway site in the Comprehensive Master Plan shows the area divided into 2- to 4-acre
business and industrial park lots.

The City should revise the Comprehensive master Plan to designate the Hales Corners
Speedway site as a retail commercial site.  Commercial use of the site would be more
compatible with the overall residential character of this part of the City and would likely
yield a higher tax base for the City than industrial sites.

Site J-2

Developable Acreage: 28 acres (mostly developed lots)
Access: Forest Home Avenue
Recommended Uses: Light Industrial

Comments: Site J-2 consists of an older light industrial park located on Forest Home Avenue
southwest of the Hales Corner Speedway.  Most of the lots are less than 3 acres in size.
The City’s Comprehensive Master Plan designates this are as M-1 Light Industrial.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 38

This industrial district is not well-located with respect to access to regional highways and
it is located in close proximity to predominantly residential districts.  If the site were
currently undeveloped, it would not be a prime candidate for a business park.  However,
there are many successful small businesses in the area and the area provides relatively
low-cost industrial and warehouse space.  Over a long time-frame, the City should shift
manufacturing, industrial, and distribution uses to planned industrial or business parks with
better access to I-94.  However, for the foreseeable future Site J-2 is expected to remain
a light industrial district.

Site J-3

Developable Acreage: 40 acres
Access: Forest Home Avenue
Recommended Uses: Residential, Ancillary Neighborhood Commercial

Comments: Site J-3 consists of the southern portion of the Lover’s Lane Planning Area fronting on
Rawson Avenue.  Most of the site is undeveloped.

The City’s Comprehensive Master Plan designates the site on the corner of Forest Home
Avenue and Rawson Avenue as B-2 General Business District.  The remainder of Site J-
3 is planned for residential use.

The designated uses in the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan are appropriate, although it
is questionable whether the commercial part of the site could support a significant retail
development given the proximity to Franklin Corners and the Whitnall View area, which
are more likely to develop as retail centers.  There are also reported to be some
environmental constraints on Site J-3 due previous uses of the site.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 39



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 40

Area K  Sacred Heart Monastery

Site K-1

Developable Acreage: 109 acres
Access: Forest Home Avenue and Rawson Avenue
Recommended Uses: Residential PUD

Comments: Site K-1 is a large vacant developable area formerly operated and managed as part of the
Sacred Heart Monastery.  The area is expected to become available for redevelopment.

The City’s Comprehensive Master Plan designates the Sacred Heart Monastery site as a
future master-planned residential neighborhood or Planned Unit Development (PUD).
As an alternative, the City has been considering the site as a potential “high-value
business park.”

Due to the distance from I-94 and other major regional highways, the consultant team
does not believe this site offers as much potential for business park development as sites
in Areas D, C, F, or E.

Site K-1 is an extremely attractive residential development site may yield as much fiscal
benefit to the City if it were developed as a higher-value residential neighborhood with a
combination of large single-family estate lots and condominiums and apartments targeted
toward empty-nesters or retirees.  The site should be developed as a master-planned
PUD.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 41

Area L  Saint Matins of Tours

Site K-1

Developable Acreage: 135 acres
Access: Forest Home Avenue
Recommended Uses: Residential PUD

Comments: Site L-1 is a large vacant developable area owned by the Milwaukee Archdioceses.  The
area is expected to become available for development in the near future.

This area is a very sensitive portion of the City that adjoins the historic traditional village
of Saint Martin.  Any development on the site should be compatible with the Milwaukee
Archdioceses’ future  plans for St. Matins of Tours Parish and the surrounding lands.

The City’s Comprehensive Master Plan designates most of Site L-1 as a master-planned
residential neighborhood or Planned Unit development (PUD) with a small B-1
Neighborhood Business District fronting on Forest Home Avenue.

Development within this area will require sensitivity to both adjoining land uses and the
extensive environmental corridor in the area.

The City should continue to maintain a planned residential land use designation for Site L-
1.



TICKNOR
& ASSOCIATES

Franklin First.  Phase III: Land Use Recommendations March, 2000
Prepared by SmithGroup JJR                                                                                              Page 42


	3-12-2026 EDC Special Meeting Agenda.pdf
	Franklin City Hall, Hearing Room 9229 W. Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin

	1-26-26 Draft EDC Minutes.pdf
	Minutes of the Franklin Economic Development Commission

	BLANK PAGE.pdf
	Lee Mechanical,  Major Site Plan Amendment.pdf
	01 EDC Staff Report - Lee Mechanical - 9909 S 57th Street.pdf
	02 EDC RES Lee Mechanical 9909 S 57th St.pdf
	03 Staff Comments - SPA - Lee Mechanical - 9909 S 57th Street.pdf
	04 2024.0278.01 - Lee Mechanical Legal Description (8-6-25).pdf
	05 2024.0278.01 - Lee Mechanical Project Narrative (8-6-25).pdf
	06 2024.0278.01 - Lee Mechanical Civil Plans (10-3-2025) - SIGNED.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	2024.0278.01-EX COND
	2024.0278.01-SITE
	2024.0278.01-DEMO
	2024.0278.01-PAVEMENT
	2024.0278.01-GRADING
	2024.0278.01-DETAILS 1
	2024.0278.01-DETAILS 2

	2024.0278.01-COVER.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	COVER




	BLANK PAGE.pdf
	Franklin_First_Ticknor_Report_March2000.pdf

